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MILESTONES
HEY

THE EARLY YEARS

In the early years, we established our core values, from which our
corporate culture would grow.

COMPETENT PEOPLE
Attracting the best people possible and having the best system
in place to help them reach their full potentials

RESPECT
Respecting the elderly residents the way we would to our families

ELDERLY FIRST
Putting the best interests of the elderly residents above all else

Our first projects include previous Pine Care Centre, previous
Tsz Wan Shan Pine Care Elderly Home, previous New Pine
Care Centre, and Pinecrest Elderly Centre. During this
period, we also became one of the first RCHEs to participate in
the Hong Kong Government’s EBPS program.

SETTING THE FOUNDATION

The focus of our second decade was setting our foundation for
quality. This includes the establishment of our Quality Assurance
Monitoring Committee, obtaining the internationally recognised
ISO 9001 accreditation, the in-house development of
Encompass, our nursing and operations software system, the
optimisation and standardisation of our operating procedures,
and the grooming of generation of management personnel.
Additionally, we had also established Pine Care (Manning)
Elderly Centre in Tsz Wan Shan and Pine Care Hong Fai
Elderly Centre in Sai Wan Ho during these years.
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MILESTONES
HEY

THE COMING OF AGE

Having put a solid operating model and the right people in place, the pace of our growth in our third decade has been much quicker
than the previous two decades. Our milestones include:

The acquisition of two RCHEs, namely Pine Care (Po Tak)
Elderly Centre and previous Pine Care (Po Tak Branch)
Elderly Centre in Kwai Fong

Obtaining the RACAS accreditation from the Hong Kong
Association of Gerontology

The relocation of previous New Pine Care Centre to its
current location in Shun Lee Estate

The establishment of Pine Care (Lee Foo) Elderly Centre
in Shun Lee Estate

The relocation of previous Tsz Wan Shan Pine Care
Elderly Home to Pine Care (Tak Fung) Elderly Centre in
Prince Edward

Becoming the first elderly care home operator to be listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

The relocation from previous Pine Care (Po Tak Branch)
Elderly Centre to Pine Care Chun King Elderly Centre in
Tsuen Wan

The establishment of Pine Care Place, the upscale RCHE,
in Yuen Long
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The establishment of Patina Wellness, the first integrated
senior wellness hub, in Kowloon City

The establishment of Pine Care Yada (Wuzhen) Elderly
Centre and Pine Care Yada (Wuzhen) Day Care Centre
in Zhejiang Province of Mainland China

The establishment of Patina Bistro, the health-focused
restaurant, in Kowloon City

The establishment of Patina Care and Patina Health
Centre in Kowloon City

The establishment of Pine Care Point, the specialist RCHE
for elderly with dementia, in Shek Kip Mei

Commencement of daycare services in Pine Care Place

Introduction of new investors
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KEY FOCUS
HXE

CORE BUSINESS
Bl SE B

SPECIALIST RCHE
s Rl 5 e = R 4 B

Pine Care Point ¥\#R &5
e " f

|

N i

06 | PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 !



KEY FOCUS
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BUSINESS INFORMATION

Our Business Footprint
in Hong Kong
BMREBNEKZT

Hong Kong Island
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Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre
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Our Business Information in Hong Kong

HMREBNEBER

Core Business

Eight EA1 Care and Attention Homes

1,036 Residential Care Places

Net floor area: Approximately 120,000 square feet

Daycare Services
Serving 20 elderly customers daily on average

Luxury Segment

Upscale RCHE: Pine Care Place

68 Residential Care Places

Floor area: Approximately 33,400 square feet

RCHE Specializing in Dementia Care: Pine Care Point
102 Residential Care Places
Floor area: Approximately 43,400 square feet

Integrated Senior Wellness Hub: Patina Wellness
79 Serviced Apartment with Nursing Care Services
32 Residential Care Places

Health Centre

Health Focused Restaurant

Floor area: Approximately 84,000 square feet

Our Service Offerings

AR AR H =

Today, our service offerings cover a
wide range, needs and

price points, and serves as a
differentiation factor from other
operators.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Pine Care Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020”).

The past year was one of innovation and transformation for Pine Care Group,
with the introduction of new services and specialised projects, as well as the
addition of new board members and investors. | am extremely honored to be
appointed as the Chairman of the Group and | look forward to working with
the Board and management to build a future based on innovation, leveraging
on our resources to create long term shared value to our shareholders and
promoting the development of the industry. Our aim is not only to achieve a
higher level of service quality for the elderly, but also to alleviate the shortage
of elderly care places as a result of the aging population of Hong Kong.

| believe that the Tang family’s and my extensive experience in Hong Kong’s
property market and our ability to source suitable locations for expansion will
accelerate the Group’s growth trajectory. My past professional experience
also includes hotels, catering, and clubhouse businesses. Together with the
Group’s expertise in elderly care and its track record of technological
innovation, | am confident of the synergistic effect and our ability to create a
strong business ecosystem under the main core values of the Group, namely
(i) respecting the elderly residents the way we would to our families; (i) putting
the best interests of the elderly residents above all else; (i) and caring for our
talents. Going forward, the Group will focus more on exploring the mid-end to
high-end elderly care market to diversify our business and strive for greater
competitiveness in the elderly care market in Hong Kong, the Greater Bay
Area, and the rest of Mainland China.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B L8

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Our business has performed well and has delivered a year-on-year growth in
core EBITDA of approximately 19.6% to HK$38.4 million for FY2020 from
HK$32.1 million for FY2019, primarily driven by the average fee increase and
improved occupancy rate of Pine Care Place.

FY2020 was a very difficult year, with social unrests and the outbreak of
COVID-19 presenting extraordinary social and economic challenges to much
of Hong Kong. Fortunately, the core business of our eight EA1 care and
attention homes have been largely unaffected by these events. Occupancy
rate remains strong, averaging at 93.6%, compared to 94.2% for the same
period last year. We are deeply moved by our staff’s professionalism and
dedication to the elderly during this challenging time, and we would like to take
this opportunity to thank them for their tireless efforts, in particular, for their
perseverance in taking care of our elderly residents in the pandemic.

Note:

“Enhanced Bought Place Scheme” or “EBPS”: the scheme under which the Social
Welfare Department (the “SWD”) of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) has purchased residential care places (beds)
from private homes for the elderly since 1998, with a view to upgrading the service
standard of these homes through enhanced service requirements in terms of staffing and
space standards. This also helps to increase the supply of subsidised places so as to
reduce elderly’s waiting time for subsidised care and attention home places. Elderly
homes under the EBPS are split into two categories, namely EA1 and EA2, with different
space standards and staffing requirements.

“EA1”: one of the two categories under the EBPS. EA1 homes have higher requirements
in terms of staffing and per capita net floor area as compared to EA2 homes. As required
under the EBPS, the staffing requirement for an EA1 home with 40 places is 21.5,
calculated on the basis of eight working hours per staff per day, including relief staff, and
its per capita net floor area are 9.5 square metres.

Since the Group’s IPO three years ago, we have made remarkable progress in
broadening our reach and executing new business models. Today, our service
offerings cover a wide range and needs and price points, and serves as a
differentiating factor from other operators.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

While our core business has remained stable amid the recent social and
economic challenges, our projects in the luxury segment are facing some
headwinds. Looking ahead, we foresee that the softening of the economy will
continue to dampen the willingness of our customers to spend in the luxury
segment. Having said that, we are pleased to report that in spite of the difficult
business environment, we are still gaining ground in all of our luxury projects.
We are also delighted to report that daycare services have already begun at
Pine Care Place, our luxury care and attention home located at Yoho Mall |
(Extension) in Yuen Long. Not only does daycare services bring in a new
revenue stream, but it also fits into our strategic goal of broadening our reach,
enabling us to serve the elderly with a wider range of needs. In Mainland
China, the picture is less rosy, at least in the short run. While we are very
proud of the level of service that we have brought to the Mainland China, we
are still finding the right way to market our services. We will redouble our
marketing efforts and hopefully bring this project to fruition in the near future.

Operationally, we have had some measurable success in increasing our
efficiencies through introducing incentive programs for home managers. The
focus in the coming year will be to build upon this foundation and continue to
search for efficiency gains without sacrificing service quality. At the same time,
we will continue to search for new expansion opportunities, including
replicating our proven business models, launching new lines of business, and
finding synergistic collaboration opportunities.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, customers,
bankers and business partners for their continued trust and support. Once
again, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our staff members for
their professional dedication, diligence and contribution to the Group, all of
which lay the foundation for the Group’s future success. We are pleased with
our execution of the expansion strategy, and we are excited by the
opportunities that lie ahead.

Tang Yiu Sing
Chairman and Executive Director

26 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLJE W v L T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK” for (i)
a discussion of the core business of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2020; and (i) prospects of the core business and new projects of the
Group.

An analysis of the revenue and operating segment information for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020 is set out in notes 6 and 5 to the financial
statements, respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was generated from (i) rendering elderly home care
services including the provision of residence, professional nursing and care
taking services, nutritional management, medical services, psychological and
social care, and individual care plans; and (i) sale of elderly home related
goods and provision of health care services, in Hong Kong.

Total revenue delivered a year-on-year increase of approximately 16.4% to
HK$217.4 million in FY2020 from HK$186.8 million in FY2019. The increase
was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the increase in average monthly
residential fee of our eight EA1 care and attention homes; and (ji) improved
occupancy rate of Pine Care Place.

Amortisation

Amortisation represents amortisation charges for our intangible assets which
were recognised upon completion of acquisition of a subsidiary in April 2017.
Amortisation charge remained stable at HK$3.1 million in both FY2020 and
FY2019.

Depreciation

Depreciation represents depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment which comprise right-of-use assets, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and other equipment; and motor vehicles. Depreciation
increased by approximately 181.6% to HK$33.7 million in FY2020 from
HK$12.0 million in FY2019. The increase in depreciation was primarily
attributable to the combined effects of (i) an increase in depreciation charge of
HK$25.2 million on right-of-use assets upon adoption of HKFRS 16; and (i)
full year effect of depreciation charges of Pine Care Place.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLLJE W i L T

Staff costs

Staff costs remained as the largest component of our operating expenses.
Our staff costs include wages, salaries, bonuses, retirement benefit costs, and
other allowances and benefits payable to all employees of the Group. Our
gross staff costs, before netting off with government grants of HK$11.2 million
in FY2020 and HK$9.6 million in FY2019, respectively for hiring specialised
professionals for our elderly residents with dementia or infirmary, increased by
approximately 11.4% to HK$110.7 million in FY2020 from HK$99.4 million in
FY2019, which represents approximately 51.0% of FY2020 revenue and
53.2% of FY2019 revenue respectively. The increase was primarily contributed
by a general salary increment during the year.

Property rental and related expenses

Our property rental and related expenses primarily represent government rent
and rates and building management fees in respect of our leased properties.
Property rental and related expenses decreased by approximately 67.4% to
HK$6.6 million in FY2020 from HK$20.3 million in FY2019. The decrease was
primarily contributed by the combined effects of adjustment on property rental
expenses of HK$19.8 million upon adoption of HKFRS 16, which was partially
offset by the increase of building management fees and government rent and
rates.

Food and beverage costs

Our food and beverage costs represent costs of all food ingredients and
beverages used for the provision of meals to our residents. The costs
remained stable at HK$8.5 million in both FY2020 and FY2019.

Utility expenses

Our utility expenses represent costs of water and electricity for our care and
attention homes and office. The costs remained stable at HK$7.1 million in
FY2020 compared with HK$6.9 million in FY2019.

Supplies and consumables

Our supplies and consumables represent costs of medical consumable
materials used for our operation. The costs increased by approximately 17.8%
to HK$6.7 million in FY2020 from HK$5.7 million in FY2019. The increase in
supplies and consumables was mainly contributed by more procurement of
medical consumable materials and sanitation products to safeguard our care
and attention homes against the novel coronavirus.
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Repair and maintenance

Our repair and maintenance expenses are incurred for initiatives for improving
facilities and daily repair and maintenance works in our care and attention
homes to ensure the quality and safety of the premises and facilities. The
expenses increased by approximately 47.5% to HK$2.7 million in FY2020
from HK$1.9 million in FY2019. The increase in expenses was primarily driven
by certain initiatives for improving facilities of our care and attention homes in
the current year.

Other operating expenses

Our other operating expenses in FY2020 mainly consist of (i) medical and
professional fees incurred for engaging external visiting medical officers,
dietitians and pharmacists, and additional manpower of physiotherapists, care
workers and health workers through employment agencies, with an aggregate
amount of HK$12.2 million (FY2019: HK$9.0 million); (i) advertising expenses
for digital marketing and promotions of our care and attention homes and new
projects, with an aggregate amount of HK$1.6 million (FY2019: HK$1.2
million); (iii) cleaning expenses for our care and attention homes, with an
aggregate amount of HK$1.2 million (FY2019: HK$1.0 million); (iv) insurance
policies for all of our care and attention homes, with an aggregate amount of
HK$1.0 million (FY2019: HK$1.5 million); (iv) legal and professional fees, with
an aggregate amount of HK$7.1 million (FY2019: HK$4.7 million); (v) corporate
expenses and various operating expenses, with an aggregate amount of
HK$4.6 million (FY2019: HK$4.1 million).

The expenses increased by approximately 28.6% to HK$27.7 million in
FY2020 from HK$21.5 million in FY2019. The increase in other operating
expenses was primarily driven by (i) the increase in medical and professional
fees of HK$3.2 million for engaging more physiotherapists and additional
workforce to combat short-term labour shortage of the Group through
employment agencies; (i) the increase of legal and professional fees of HK$2.4
million for the preparation of the composite offer and response document
jointly issued by the Company and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing dated 28 February 2020
in relation to, among other things, the unconditional mandatory general cash
offer; and (jii) the increase of advertising expenses of HK$0.4 million for our
digital marketing initiatives for Patina Care, Pine Care Point and Pine Care
Place.

Share of loss of a joint venture
The amount represented the share of loss of Patina Wellness Limited which is
indirectly held as to 51% by the Group.
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Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represent interest expenses on bank loans. The
finance costs increased by approximately 98.7% to HK$4.8 million in FY2020
from HK$2.4 million in FY2019. The increase in finance costs was primarily
due to the combined effects of (i) the adjustment on interest expenses on
lease liabilities of HK$1.9 million upon adoption of HKFRS 16; and (ii) increase
in interest rates during FY2020.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense represents Hong Kong profits tax of 16.5% on
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The income tax expense
increased by approximately 109.8% to HK$3.5 million in FY2020 from HK$1.7
million in FY2019. The increase in income tax expense was primarily
attributable to the increase in current tax due to increased assessable profits.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company increased by approximately 1.1% to HK$13.6 million in FY2020
from HK$13.4 million in FY2019.

KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Property, plant and equipment

Our property, plant and equipment consist of land and buildings, right-of-use
assets, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and other equipment,
motor vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019, the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$819.3 million and HK$331.4 million respectively. The increase of
HK$487.9 million in FY2020 was primarily due to the combined effects of ())
reclassification of prepaid land lease payment of HK$376.7 million upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, (i) the completion of renovation works of Pine Care
Point which led to an increase in capital expenditure of HK$36.6 million, (iii)
recognition of right-of-use assets of HK$105.1 million upon adoption of
HKFRS 16; and (iv) depreciation charges of HK$33.7 million for the current
year.

Prepaid land lease payments

As at 31 March 2019, our prepaid land lease payments represented the
unamortised land portion of the property of Shop GIB, G/F, whole 1/F to 3/F,
Main Town Plaza, 223-239 Nam Cheong Street, Kowloon where Pine Care
Point is situated and a warehouse. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 during
FY2020, this balance sheet line item was accounted for as right-of-use assets
in property, plant and equipment.
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Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group carried goodwill of
HK$33.8 million in the consolidated statement of financial position, which
arose from the acquisition of controlling interests in companies principally
engaged in the provision of elderly home care services. No impairment was
noted based on the goodwill impairment assessment performed by our
management.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, our interest-bearing bank
borrowings mainly represented bank loans which consisted of mortgage loans
for financing mortgage payments for our care and attention home premises
and working capital loans for our working capital.

The effective interest rates pertaining to our bank loans ranged from 2.00% to
4.05% as at 31 March 2020 and from 2.13% to 3.66% as at 31 March 2019;
with the maturity up to year 2035 as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
Despite an increasing trend of interest rates is expected in the foreseeable
future, we are confident in managing our finance costs through repayments of
the bank loans via our steady cash inflows generated from operations.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Our net assets amounted to HK$206.7 million and HK$207.1 million as at 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively. The slight decrease in net
assets was primarily due to the combined effects of profitable operation for
FY2020 and payment of dividends in FY2020.

For illustrative purposes, by including the revaluation surplus of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$773.9 million, being the premium of the
HK$1,443.8 million total valuation, as appraised by an independent valuer
engaged by the Company in respect of the valuation of the land and buildings
of the Group as at 31 March 2020, over the carrying amount of the land and
buildings of the Group of HK$669.9 million as at 31 March 2020, the adjusted
consolidated net assets of the Group would have been HK$980.6 million as at
31 March 2020.
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As at 31 March 2020, our cash and bank balances amounted to HK$27.8
million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$50.9 million) and were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars; and our net current liabilities were HK$409.5 million (net
current liabilities as at 31 March 2019: HK$19.2 million). The current ratio,
being current assets over current liabilities, was approximately 0.10 time as at
31 March 2020 (as at 31 March 2019: 0.75 time). As mentioned in note 2.1 of
financial statements, the Group did not comply with a covenant of a term loan
as at 31 March 2020; and the carrying amount of this term loan, amounting to
HK$346.5 million, was classified as current liabilities as at 31 March 2020. In
June 2020, the relevant covenant of this term loan was removed in a revised
banking facility letter and the non-current portion of this term loan according
to the original repayment schedule, amounting to HK$332.5 million, was
classified as non-current liabilities.

Excluding (i) the non-current portion of the aforesaid term loan of HK$332.5
million; (i) deferral of principal payments of HK$33.8 million covered under the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Pre-approved Principal Payment Holiday
Scheme for Corporate Customers; and (iii) the current portion of lease liabilities
of HK$20.9 million upon adoption of HKFRS 16, our net current liabilities
would have been HK$22.3 million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$19.2 million); and
our current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities before the non-
current portion of the aforesaid term loan, the aforesaid deferral of principal
payments covered under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for Corporate Customers and current
portion of lease liabilities, would have been 0.68 time as at 31 March 2020 (as
at 31 March 2019: 0.75 time).

As at 31 March 2020, our interest-bearing bank borrowings amounted to
HK$599.3 million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$593.5 million), among which,
assuming the aforesaid term loan would be repayable according to the
repayment schedule and taking into account of the aforesaid deferral of
principal payments covered under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Pre-
approved Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for Corporate Customers,
HK$42.3 million, HK$51.0 million, HK$452.6 million, and HK$53.4 million were
repayable within one year or on demand, in the second vyear, in the third to
fifth years (both years inclusive), and beyond five years respectively (as at 31
March 2019: HK$56.4 million, HK$41.7 million, HK$134.2 million, and
HK$361.2 million respectively). As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, all
of our interest-bearing bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and the majority of our interest-bearing bank borrowings were secured
by the land and buildings and prepaid land lease payments of the Group.
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Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing
current assets and non-current assets). As at 31 March 2020, our gearing
ratio was 60.6% as compared with the gearing ratio of 64.2% as at 31 March
2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during
FY2020. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related to the renovation
works of Pine Care Point. In FY2020, the Group incurred capital expenditure
in an aggregate amount of HK$40.1 million (FY2019: HK$77.9 million).

RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to the Group’s
bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

As at 31 March 2020, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 25 basis
points higher/lower, which was considered reasonably possible by the
management, with all other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$0.5 million (FY2019: HK$0.5 million) as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of bank loans. In addition, banking facilities
have been put in place for contingency purposes.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an on-going basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets comprising cash and bank
balances arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
that equals to the carrying amounts of these instruments. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk, and hence the
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any material off-balance sheet
arrangements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures undertaken by the Group during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant investments held.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have capital commitments (as at 31
March 2019: HK$4.6 million for the investment in a joint venture).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$657.1 million (as at 31 March 2019:
HK$208.3 million), prepaid land lease payments of HK$376.7 million as at 31
March 2019; and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with
carrying amount of HK$3.1 million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$3.1 million) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save for the
above, the Group had no other pledges of assets as at 31 March 2020.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 457 full-time and part-time
employees (as at 31 March 2019: 425 employees). Our staff costs (excluding
government grants) were HK$110.7 million in FY2020 (FY2019: HK$99.4

million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive, and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis, together with
reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks
in the industry, and market conditions, within the general framework of the

Group’s remuneration system.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include,
but are not limited to, the directors, including independent non-executive
directors, of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group, and
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the directors will contribute or have contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted on 23 January
2017. No share option has been granted or agreed to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

The remuneration of the directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, according to the relevant directors’ experience,
responsibility, workload, the time devoted to the Group, the Group’s operating
results and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, aged 34, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Board, the chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tang graduated from
University of Western Ontario with an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with an
Executive Master in Innovation Leadership degree. He also received an
Honorary Fellowship from The Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector in 2019. Mr. Tang has over 15 years of solid experience in
property investment, asset management and business operations. He is the
founder and Chairman of Stan Group and the Chief Executive Officer of Tang’s
Living Group, a member of Stan Group. He is also currently an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of ETS Group Limited (stock code:
8031) of which the shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“ETS
Group”). Mr. Tang is currently a director of the China Overseas Friendship
Association, a standing committee member of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference — Dongguan, chief advisor to the Honorary Consul
for Fiji in Hong Kong, an award council member for the Hong Kong Award for
Young People, a co-opted member of Task Force of The Social Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Development Fund, an executive member of Y.Elite
Association and Chairperson of committee on Industries & Commerce of
Y.Elite Association and a director of the board of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong. In 2019, he also founded the Dongguan-Hong Kong Bay Area
Association and served as the president. Mr. Tang is a director of Starcorp
Limited and Smartbase Investments Limited (substantial shareholders of the
Company), and a younger brother of Dr. Tang Yiu Pong (non-executive
director of the Company).

HITES

HEA L

BBA L > 3458 0 2020 3 A28 HEZ T AR
RAMITES - BMRARFEETEER  BHE
BERFERIMEEGKE - IAEEERTALTK
MAZ BISIHERETSMN  WREBEIX
B2EX DSEREBASAFEMBELZM - &
R2019FREBHMEFETEP LOBAREER L -
HEFERMERE BEEBREKEETOHEA
BISFEELR - HAMEEE ZAIMARERE -
AR & 18 52 B B8 T pX B Tang’s Living Group 8917
HAEH - B ASBAERERAR( ZEAER])
(B - 8031) VBITE B RITHAER - Z AT
AR A7 PR 22 T GEM =17 o B 5t AR 3R (E Fh 3208 NIk 5
SEFE HRARBAHEEHRRETTE £H
HEREREERER BEEFREHEIEEE
ZE  [HgalFRalXERES | FH/NEEHE
8 BRERGRTHRERETESTREIHERMT
REFFELRBEBLAGRELES - K2019F « KA
BEBERETEETER BWELERARAREER
5 Starcorp Limited & Smartbase Investments Limited

WEE  MARRBERITESSRABELOMRS -

| PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 !



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

PR AR RS JE

Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei

Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, aged 42, the chief executive officer of the Group, was
appointed as a director of the Company on 18 August 2015 and was
designated as an executive director of the Company on 7 September 2016.
He joined the Group in May 2009 as a director. Mr. Billy Yim is a director of
the Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for formulating
business strategies, managing the business operations of the Group and
overseeing the general performance of the Group.

Mr. Billy Yim obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering in
Industrial and Operations Engineering from The University of Michigan in the
U.S. in April 2000, a degree of Master of Science in Electronic Commerce
from Carnegie Mellon University in the U.S. in May 2003, and a degree of
Master of Business Administration from INSEAD (Fontainebleau (France) &
Singapore) in December 2007. He was a member of the executive committee
of The Elderly Services Association of Hong Kong from 2009 to 2013, and has
currently been serving as the Vice-Chairman of the Association of Bought
Place Elderly Services since February 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Billy Yim worked for United Airlines Inc. in
Chicago, the U.S., from August 2000 to February 2002, with his last position
being business analyst, Research and Development. He also worked at Best
e-Solutions Limited in Hong Kong from November 2003 to July 2005, with his
last position being assistant vice president, business development, and HSBC
Private Bank (Suisse) SA in Hong Kong from March 2008 to February 2009,
with his last position being assistant vice president. Mr. Billy Yim is a director
of Silverage Pine Care Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), a
son of Mr. Yim Ting Kwok (a substantial shareholder of the Company) and Ms.
Cho Wing Yin (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and a brother of Mr.
Yim Edwin Pui Hin (head of operations of the Group and a substantial
shareholder of the Company).

BmELE

BMELLE 425 ARNEERNTHAY - 7K 2015
FEH1BHERITIARNRNGESE  WHN20164F9 A
THEAGAKRRTIMITES © KR 20094 5 A N
AREEETES - BTEEEBRRREBHE
NAINESZ - BEEHIETESRE  EEAEEY
£ WEBAEENEERE -

BOMESLER2000F 4 ARBSERRABRAETE
DBRETIEMTIRES LM R2003F5 AKSE
EEFAEERAENETEKESE LTSN I
#2007 £ 12 A 7 15 INSEAD (Fontainebleau (France)
& Singapore) #) T & B £ 2407 o 74 2009 F &
2013 F ABBLERBHBENNITZEGKE - I
B2018F2 AR ABBEMNLERBEHGHEERE -

EMARER® 2 AT - M E L ER2000F8 A=
20022 A EEE MFEBRBAMELAT - M
15 B AT B B B I B SRR E AR © 1% IR 2003
F11 A 2200557 AEBAEBEHRIZER AT -
MR EEE AT B A X BRI BIZRAE - TN
20084 3 A 20094 2 A BN ELRARITIRT)
BRAR - MR ABIERBE - Bb
H %t 4 & Silverage Pine Care Limited (AR £ Z /%
R)MEF  BREBLE (RNRAEERE) FE KT
ZE(RRBEERR)BNRT + LREBSHE LA (K
EEZEETERTERF)MMBA -

l T B 2 AR AR A |

2020 £ ]

23—



-

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

PR R R RS e

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is an executive director and the
chief financial officer of Stan Group. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, and corporate restructuring. Mr. Yeung has been
appointed as an executive director and a director of the relevant members of
ETS Group Limited (stock code: 8031), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 29 July 2015 and is the Compliance Officer,
an authorised representative and a member of the nomination committee and
the risk management and internal control committee of ETS Group Limited.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Simon Fraser University with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration majoring in Accounting in 1994 and obtained a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Western
Ontario in 2014. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant.

Prior to joining Stan Group, Mr. Yeung was the managing director of FTI
Consulting, a consulting company specialised in, among other things,
corporate restructuring, receivership and forensic accounting. Mr. Yeung was
an Executive Director of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (now
known as “Kirin Group Holdings Limited”, stock code: 8109) (“Creative
Energy”), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, for the period
from 30 January 2010 to 29 July 2010. During the term of Mr. Yeung'’s office
as its Executive Director, the group of Creative Energy was principally engaged
in the provision of energy saving services and sales of energy saving products.
Following the completion of the restructuring of Creative Energy, he resigned
as an Executive Director of Creative Energy with effect from 29 July 2010.
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Mr. Chan Yip Keung

Mr. Chan Yip Keung, aged 37, has been appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group since April 2015. He was appointed as a director of the
Company on 30 April 2016 and was designated as an executive director of
the Company on 7 September 2016. Mr. Chan is responsible for corporate
governance, accounting and finance matters, business and operation analysis,
and cost control measures of the Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration
(Professional Accountancy) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2005 and a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 2017. He has been a member
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2009 and March 2018 respectively; and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries since December 2017.

He worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers from September 2005 to November
2011 with his last position being manager, assurance, institutional group. Prior
to joining the Group, from November 2011 to April 2015, Mr. Chan was the
finance manager of Mapletree Hong Kong Management Limited under
Temasek of Singapore, specialised in real estate investment trusts sector.

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, aged 56, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of experience in hospitality management and hotel operations. Mr. Cheng was
previously the General Manager of Dorsett Tsuen Wan Hotel and Silka Far
East Hotel since 2013, and he joined the Dorsett Group as the General
Manager of Silka Far East Hotel in 2007. Mr. Cheng previously worked for the
Majestic Hotel in 2000 as Front Office Manager and was promoted to Director
of Sales in 2005. He is a member of the Executive Committee of The
Federation of Hong Kong Hotel Owners. Mr. Cheng is currently the Managing
Director of Tang’s Living Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong, aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Dr. Tang graduated from
Guangzhou University of Chinese Medicine. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Chinese Medicine, a Master Degree of Acupuncture and Massage, a Research
Student Degree in Acupuncture and Massage (Master) and a PH. Degree of
Acupuncture and Massage. He is also a qualified Clinical Hypnotherapist
certified by the American Council of Hypnotist Examiners. Dr. Tang has over
15 years of experience in retail and Chinese medicine practice. He is currently
the founder and Managing Director of J. Champion Holdings Ltd. He is also
the elder brother of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (the Chairman of the Board and
executive director of the Company).

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Gilbert Wong held a Master
Degree of Business Administration. He has over 30 years of extensive
experience in the financial sectors mainly in the fields of securities, asset
management and wealth management. He is currently the Executive Director
of Gear Financial Group. Prior to joining Gear Financial Group, Mr. Gilbert
Wong held senior management positions of several financial groups listed in
Hong Kong, including Huarong International Securities Limited and CASH
Financial Service Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony v+, Jp

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony MH, JP, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 23 March
2020. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
is a marketing professional in the financial and insurance fields in which he
held senior executive positions in a number of major international and local
companies, in both private and public sectors. Mr. Anthony Yuen is currently
the Managing Director and Responsible Officer of Yue Tung Global Asset
Management Ltd., an Elected Member, Standing Committee of the
Convocation of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Council Member of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and Director of the CUHK Medical
Centre Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive director of Sun Hung Kai
Properties Insurance Ltd. Prior to that, he was an independent non-executive
director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6161), a company
listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange, for the period from 14 April 2015
to 7 January 2020.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I

FHITES

HEAEL

R L - 3758 0 R2020F 3 A28 HEZ T ALK
NAFATES - BETREMPEERBEE -
WFARHEBET BN  HARMESEL B4 - #
ZEZEE2(EL)AREBLURHREZEE L2
fiz o 7" AR EEERS %Eﬂiﬁiﬁr%éiA
(American Council of Hypnotist Examiners) 32 #& £ &
BRGRIER AR - WIETHETERPETER
BISFER - BREAREAERAFTMAINARES
B - FRERASE(ARREEGEE LT
BHE)MK -

t

BERAELE

ERBKE - 585 - 1N 2020F 3 A23 BER T AR
NAEMITES - BMAARAIBEZEZEENKE
HRETEFEAETIEEEBTEM - #RERR(E
EhES HEEEERMEEREE)EA0FE
BB FRAEXSHMEENNITES - MAR
XomEER  ERELECNZEAEEE LTH
TREE(BEERBREFERATALFESHR
%%@)%‘E%%&Efﬂ%u o

g

BYEHITES

BTN v - 4 Fa+

B R EMH - A T4t > 665% ° 202043 A 23
H%é&%$”ﬂﬁj%ﬁﬁ§$oﬁﬁE$“

BERZECER FTHEESEERREEZEEY

B -RASHERBEERENTMSHESRS TR
SR AL KRB B K A A BT S AR 1T BURTS -
ERTCERANBRIEAEEEBRARESS
CERBEEEAN  BEFPXARABRATZEEH
ZEGEAIEE  BEEPURBERERBEBPIK
BEREFR - FRBETIDENEENERKRERR

AIBMIFITES - LI ZATE R 201544 A14H
E2020F 1 A7 B HIMETHIMER ETMARSE
RER (%) BRR AR (RGH KSR : 6161) B IE
WITES -

26 | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

PR AR RS JE

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 January 2017. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Liu has been practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong with
more than 31 years of experience. Mr. Liu graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in
November 1997, and obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration
from University of Lincoln in the United Kingdom in November 2002. He is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow member of the Institute of Financial Accountants, the United Kingdom
and a fellow member of the Institute of Public Accountants, Melbourne,
Australia. Mr. Liu is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong, a Registered Financial Planner and a fellow member of the
Society of Registered Financial Planners.

Mr. Liu currently acts as an independent non-executive director of China
National Culture Group Limited (stock code: 745) and Polytec Asset Holdings
Limited (stock code: 208), the securities of both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also acts as an independent non-
executive director of abc Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131), the securities
of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. In April 2019, Mr. Liu has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of ATIF Holdings
Limited, the securities of which are listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market of the
United States. Mr. Liu was an independent non-executive director of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022) from May 2014 to December
2016, the securities of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. On 15
June 2020, Mr. Liu was also appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Earthasia International Holdings Limited (stock code: 6128), the
securities of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wong Ping San John
Dr. Wong Ping San John, aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 January 2017.

Dr. Wong graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of
Bachelor of Medicine and a degree of Bachelor of Surgery (MB BS (HK)) in
October 1971, and obtained a degree of Master of Philosophy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1994. Dr. Wong is a medical
practitioner with full registration with the Medical Council of Hong Kong.

BEESTE 585 i2017F1 A3 HEZ T AR
NEBYIERITES - BWITAARFEZELZEE -
FMEEGRIREEESRENMKE -

BreE—ETBBEERESTA  HAR3FE&
5 o BAEN1097F 11 ARERB BRI KRE - &
SENEE4 B WHR2002F 11 AESER
MERENTHERE TSN - KAREE BB
T emMAeEREe8  AEFHSTMAE
BRxe8  AEAMMBEEHMACERGERR
MBRAARSHAMBEERLE - BRENAD
BEIMATERSE  BEANBEEEREE -

EMBE MU SRR EEREE -

BAERTPRBERVLEEEBFR AR (BRHHR
55 745) RRFEBEEERER AR (BRHA
208) BB IEWMITE S © MERBIMEHFEIRER
FIEREM - BEHECREREERQA(BRAOAR
S8BT MBYIENTES  HEHFNB AT
GEM £ > R2019F 4 f + Bt EREZERTMNE
RIEBREBRARINBULIFNTES - HEHFREE
METERESMIH LT - BEEGR2014F58E
2016F 12 AR EBZERBR A & (RO ARSE -
8022) B IEMITES - EEF N FTGEM &
MemR2020F6 4158  BAENCEZRITAZD
RIRBIRIERBIR AR (MRS - 6128) I 3E
WITES  HBEHFRBMERLED -

=X ILELE
B ILBE - 7455 R2017F1 A3 HEZ T AR
NEVENIEITES -

HEAMOIOTIFI0AZXENEERE BRI
Rlees+ 87 TN 1994F 12 AEBFBHR XK
EHBEETEN - BEEABTAEREESER
e A -

| R EEEEAE R AF |
! 2020 # 3k

27 b——



-

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

PR R R RS e

Dr. Liu Yuk Shing
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 23 January 2017.

Dr. Liu obtained a Higher Diploma in Structural Engineering and a degree of
Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1990
and November 1994, respectively. He also obtained a degree of Master of
Science in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December 1998,
and a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from Tarlac State University
in the Philippines in December 2013 through distance learning.

Dr. Liu is a professional engineer and has over 28 years of experience in civil,
structural and geotechnical consultancy, as well as project management for
civil and building projects. He is currently a Registered Structural Engineer and
a Registered Inspector, and has the capacity to carry out statutory duties in
Hong Kong under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Dr. Liu holds various professional qualifications and memberships in
various professional organisations: Fellow of The Geological Society of
London, Chartered Association of Building Engineers, The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Steel Construction, Hong Kong
Concrete Institute, and The Society of Operations Engineers; and Member of
The Institution of Structural Engineers, London, The Welding Institute, England,
The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, and The Institution of Civil Engineers;
and a senior member of The Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society. He is
also a Chartered Engineer of Engineering Council, and a Chartered
Environmentalist of Society for the Environment.

Dr. Liu has been working in the construction industry and delivered various
residential, industrial and commercial developments in public and private
sectors under his supervision. Dr. Liu also serves as a committee member and
the chairman of various government and institutional bodies.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chu Lai King, aged 67, is the head of human resources of the Group.
She joined the Group in July 1989 as home manager. Ms. Chu is responsible
for recruitment and human resources matters of the Group.

Ms. Chu obtained a Diploma in Gerontology from School of Professional and
Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in August 2005.

Ms. Yam Hau Kam, aged 53, is one of the nursing directors of the Group.
She joined the Group in February 1990 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Yam is
responsible for the quality control of the elderly care services provided by the
Group.

Ms. Yam has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for United Christian Hospital from February 1989 to
October 1989. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open
University of Hong Kong in June 2006 and completed the Assessors Training
Course (2015) 1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of
Gerontology in November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation
Scheme.

Ms. Pun Shuk Kan Pisa, aged 55, is one of the nursing directors of the
Group. She joined the Group in January 1998 as an enrolled nurse. Ms. Pun is
responsible for the quality control of the elderly care services provided by the
Group. Since September 2017, Ms. Pun has been responsible for the
development and management of Mainland China business of the Group.

Ms. Pun has been a registered nurse since June 2006. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for Sik Sik Yuen Elderly Service from June 1993 to August
1997. She obtained a Higher Diploma in Nursing from The Open University of
Hong Kong in June 2006 and completed the Assessors Training Course (2015)
1st Class organised by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology in
November 2015 under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme.
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Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin, aged 32, the head of operations of the Group. He
joined the Group in June 2011 as an operation manager. Mr. Edwin Yim is a
director of the Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing the daily operations of the Group’s care and attention homes.

Mr. Edwin Yim has over seven years of experience in the residential care home
for the elderly industry in Hong Kong. Apart from being responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s care and attention homes, he is
responsible for overseeing the development, deployment and maintenance of
the Group’s in-house operational software, accreditation of the Group’s care
and attention homes, management and standardisation of documents and
operating procedures, internal audits on the operations of the Group’s care
and attention homes, and compliance with regulatory requirements. Mr. Edwin
Yim graduated from The University of Manchester in the United Kingdom with
a degree of Bachelor of Science in Computer Science with Business and
Management in July 2011. Mr. Edwin Yim is a younger brother of Mr. Yim Billy
Pui Kei (the chief executive officer of the Group, an executive director of the
Company).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance in
maintaining its corporate transparency and accountability. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board considers that during the year ended 31 March 2020, except for
the code provision A.4.1, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are
summarised below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
directors and all directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”), governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant
employees in advance.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and
performances in the attainment of the objectives of ensuring effective
functioning and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. All the
directors carry out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board has power to make its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial

and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations. Any director may request for independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

The senior management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above-mentioned officers. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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Board Composition
As at 31 March 2020, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

HITES

Non-executive directors

FHTES

EEFGMAEK
MN20205F3A31H  EFERMERNT :

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman)
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei

(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Yip Keung
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert

WRAKLE (TE) R L
BOMESEE (FTHAEE) et
BREE@ AL
BRERE
Bkt

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors).Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Board has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

The members of the Board have skills and experience appropriate for the
business requirements and objectives of the Group. Each executive director is
responsible for different business and functional division of the Group in
accordance with his expertise. The non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) bring different business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Board committees of the Company. Through
participation in Board meetings, and taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests, the independent non-executive
directors have made contributions to the effective direction of the Company
and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
both the Group and the shareholders.

The biographical details of the existing directors of the Company and the
relationships between Board members, if any, are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report.

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Dr. Wong Ping San John
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement of views.

The Chairman provides leadership for and management of the Board. He
takes the primary responsibility to ensure that the Board works effectively,
performs its responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in a
timely manner. The Chairman is also responsible for facilitating the effective
contribution of non-executive directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors. During the year under review,
the Chairman has met with the non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors present.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business in accordance with the strategy, policies
and programs approved by the Board, and realization of the objectives set by
the Board into statements of vision, goals and the corresponding strategies,
plans and budgets as well as their effective implementation. He is also
responsible for providing reports and advice to the Board on the performance
of the Group’s business. The Chief Executive Officer would be well supported
by the management, who provides relevant information and recommendations
to facilitate informed decision making.

With effect from 23 March 2020, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok resigned and Mr. Tang
Yiu Sing was appointed as the Chairman; whereas Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei acts
as the Chief Executive Officer throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and removal of directors are laid
down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”). According to
the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election at
the relevant AGM. In addition, any new director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his/her appointment, and any director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM. The director appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be
eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Dr. Tang Yiu
Pong and Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert, the newly appointed non-executive
directors of the Company, and Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony, the newly
appointed independent non-executive director of the Company, are not
appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement and re-
election by shareholders at annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles.
Accordingly, the Board considers that such requirement is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of the said code provision A.4.1.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director shall receive formal induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional
development for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition,
reading materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable
to the Group are provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference.
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The directors of the Company are required to submit to the Company details
of the training they received in each financial year for the Company’s
maintenance of proper training records of the directors. According to the
training records currently maintained by the Company, during the year ended
31 March 2020, the directors of the Company have complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous professional
training as follows:

ARRBEANEVREFEARARARIADER
EIEIIFE - LS A RBMISESHEE I -
RIBARE B AIEIOEIRE  AATEENE
£2020F3 AT HIEFECETEEEATAISTA
BXEABSK - 2MeFEZEEINT

Type of training
b2 | tid)
Reading materials

Attending seminars/ provided by the
conferences and/ Company or

or forums external parties
HETNE REBALRH

BERNWE  IMNPEEBRENR

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Mete BB S () v v/
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei BT RS A v/ v/
Mr. Chan Yip Keung PR 2 58 St A v/ 4
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing Mt ) RS A i) v/ v
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching Mete WAy S A (i) v v
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok (Note2) BT B LA ) v v
Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin Mote2) B EF S A (i) v v
Non-executive Directors: FHMITESE -

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong ®ete BRI () v v
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert Mete mRE L L ) v v/
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex MNete2 REEfAE 2 v v/
Mr. Lam Yat Hon (Note2) MIRZE F A (i) v v/
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFHITESE

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony ®Note ) BriEimsdc 4 (WD v/ v/
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang BEERE 4 v
Dr. Wong Ping San John |mFILEA 4 4
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing BBt v v
Notes: Bzt -

1. Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. 1. H2020F 3 A28 HBEZ T AR NRIES °

2. Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. 2. 20204 3 A28 HALBHIANARESE -

3. These seminars/conferences/materials are related to regulatory development/ 3. ZEMEE g MR AR EE RSB

updates, directors’ duties, corporate governance or other relevant topics.

ERRE  OXEANAMMAMER -
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Meetings g5
The Board schedules regular Board meetings in advance to give directors the EEeEATHITHESe R UL TES
opportunity to participate actively, either in person or through electronic means e R e BB AR AR BEENSE
of communication which enable them to communicate with each other FBAFTRNEEREL2E - REFEEEMNAT
simultaneously and instantaneously. Directors are consulted for their views HEEee R iR eEAEENER &
regarding inclusion of specific matters in the agenda for regular Board RERTeNsETESHERXRZR - RNE
meetings and the draft agenda is circulated to directors for their comments. IR BeldBSEEee: - 8B
Special Board meetings are convened as and when needed. All directors are REZGEZ LTRNEENBNBERE
properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. These Board RESHEHEDL ZSEFETH - EZRAE
meetings, together with the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees % REAFNEEeSE AESEENE
meetings, provide effective means for the Board and Board Committees to eZEgREIERBTERREAERS
perform their work and discharge their duties. e
During the year ended 31 March 2020, 4 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee HZE2020F3A31BILFE - AAREITS
meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings, 2 Nomination Committee REEEEH 2RBERZESEH 2%
meetings and the 2019 AGM were held. Details of individual directors’ MEZEee#% 2KXREZTEECH UK
attendance at these meetings are set out in the following table: 019FMEBFAE - ZESEMEFES
HEFBERNTE
2019
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
ENZEE FMzag REZEg 2019 F|E
= EER-4- = 23 E ] BEXE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (e .31 el =S LA - N/ATER - - -
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei M B mae 44 N/ATiE 212 N/A T8 17
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Bgais 4/4 N/ATEA N/AT i A N/ATE A il
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing e ) BREFLE M - NATEA N/ATR i A NATEA -
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching et BB fe T oE A - NATEA N/ATR i A NATEA -
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok Moes2.5 BERskgmiz 44 NATEH NATER 212 17
Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin Nt B EF o A (M2) 4/4 N/ATiE N/ATEF N/ATE A 11
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong et AL - N/ATER N/ATERA NATER -
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert Metes .6 HRELENT O - - N/ATR i A NATEA -
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex M2 REE L EME 4/4 NATEA N/ATR i A NATEA il
Mr. Lam Yat Hon (o2 WRIRIE S 4 (Fi2) 3/4 NATEA N/ATR i A NATEA 11
Independent BUFHITEE -
Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony etes 1.7 Brigm s gD - - - - -
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang M'ese.9 BREEKEMT 9 4/4 2/2 - - il
Dr. Wong Ping San John ®te 0 FRLBEEHO 4/4 1/2 1/2 1/2 il
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing M1 BEmRE L 3/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 il
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Appointed as directors of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020.
Subsequent to their appointment, no Board meeting was held during the year
under review.

Resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. Prior to
their resignation, 4 Board meetings and the 2019 AGM were held during the year
under review.

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was appointed as the Nomination Committee chairman and a
Remuneration Committee member with effect from 23 March 2020. Subsequent
to his appointment, no Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was
held during the year under review.

Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei resigned as a Remuneration Committee member with effect
from 23 March 2020. Prior to his resignation, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings were held during the year under review.

Mr. Yim Ting Kwok resigned as the Nomination Committee chairman with effect
from 23 March 2020. Prior to his resignation, 2 Nomination Committee meetings
were held during the year under review.

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert was appointed as an Audit Committee member with
effect from 23 March 2020. Subsequent to his appointment, no Audit Committee
meeting was held during the year under review.

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony was appointed as the Audit Committee chairman, the
Remuneration Committee chairman and a Nomination Committee member with
effect from 23 March 2020. Subsequent to his appointment, no Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year
under review.

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang ceased to be the Audit Committee chairman, but remained
as an Audit Committee member with effect from 23 March 2020.

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang were appointed as a Remuneration Committee member and
a Nomination Committee member with effect from 23 March 2020. Subsequent
to his appointment, no Remuneration and Nomination Committee meeting was
held during the year under review.

Dr. Wong Ping San John resigned as the Remuneration Committee chairman, a
Nomination Committee member and an Audit Committee member with effect
from 23 March 2020. Prior to his resignation, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings, 2 Nomination Committee meetings and 2 Audit Committee meetings
were held during the year under review.

Mr. Liu Yuk Shing resigned as a Remuneration Committee member, a Nomination
Committee member and an Audit Committee member with effect from 23 March
2020. Prior to his resignation, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings and 2 Audit Committee meetings were held during the year
under review.

(1)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being
one executive director, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony (chairman of the
Committee) and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has met the Listing
Rules requirements of having the majority of the Remuneration Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, as well as having the

Committee chaired by an independent non-executive director.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure, and the remuneration packages of directors and members of senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
the Board with reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee has held
2 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph “Meetings”), in which the existing remuneration policy
and structure of the Company and the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company were reviewed and relevant
recommendations were made to the Board.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March
2020 is set out below:

BHZE2020F3 A1 HILFE  HMEE®EH1T2
REZ(SZBEHENBEECRHIN LE[EZ
W) & LEETARANIRAE F IR KRB K
AAREERBREEENTHAR THESS
TEL AR B -

BIBECZEERTASFRAECEBASK - H E 2020
FIANALFERAEEEXBLRBEE»NE
EFEHT AT -

Number of
Remuneration band (HK$) individual(s)
FENEE (8rx) A
40,000-200,000 40,000£200,000 1
200,001-500,000 200,001 %500,000 0
500,001-800,000 500,001 %800,000 1
800,001-1,100,000 800,001%1,100,000 2

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of 3 members, being the
Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (chairman of the
Committee), and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen
Tak Tim Anthony and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has met the code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code of having a majority of the Committee
members being independent non-executive directors, and having the
Committee chaired by the Chairman of the Board.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; identify qualified and suitable individuals to
become Board members and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors; and make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive of the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy,
devising the criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation,
provides guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors.
The Board believes that the defined selection process is good for corporate
governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity as well as
in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited to internal
promotion, re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. In selecting candidates for directorship of the
Company, the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her
duties and responsibilities.

Each candidate shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and his/her reference check. The Nomination Committee shall
report its findings and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship for decision.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes
that greater diversity of Directors is good for corporate governance and is
committed to attract and retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of
competencies from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable, the senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession planning of
the Company and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any. A
Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company, pursuant to which the
Board and the Nomination Committee are responsible for reviewing and
assessing the Board composition under diversified perspectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) and for ensuring that changes to the Board’s
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Nomination
Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to the Board, if
any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee has held 2
meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph “Meetings”), in which the Committee members has (i)
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
for the business of the Group; (ii) assessed the independence of all the
independent non-executive directors; and (iii) reviewed the overall contribution
and service of the retiring directors to the Company, and recommended the
re-election of the retiring directors at the 2019 AGM. The Nomination
Committee, based on the criteria and procedures mentioned above, had also
considered and recommended to the Board on the appointment of new
directors and the change in composition of Board Committees during the
year.

Audit Committee

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Audit Committee currently comprises a total of 3 members, being one
non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
(chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang
possesses the appropriate professional qualification, and accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial information
and reports of the Group, and considering any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditor before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms of
appointment of the external auditor and making relevant recommendation to
the Board; and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee has held 2
meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set out in
the above paragraph “Meetings”) and performed the following major works: (i)
reviewed and approved the audit plan of the Company’s external auditor,
including the nature and scope of audit, audit methodology, remuneration and
terms of engagement in respect of the audit on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019; (ii) considered major audit findings from the
auditor; (i) reviewed and considered the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and related annual results
announcement and annual report; (iv) reviewed the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function of
the Group; (v) reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition by
the Company’s then controlling shareholders; (vi) considered the re-
appointment of auditor; (vi) reviewed the interim financial statements of the
Group and related results announcement and report of the Company for the
six months ended 30 September 2019; and (viii) made relevant
recommendations to the Board.

The external auditor has attended the above meetings and discussed with the
Audit Committee members on the above audit planning and financial reporting
matters. Besides, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020. The
management has provided such explanation and information to the Board as
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

As set out in Note 2.1 to the financial statements (“Note 2.1"), the Group, as
at 31 March 2020, had net current liabilities of HK$409,450,000 in
consequence of the classification of a term loan with a carrying amount of
HK$346,500,000 as a current liability since the Group has failed to comply
with the covenant and undertaking in respect of the said term loan which has
become repayable on demand. This event, along with other matters as
detailed in Note 2.1, indicated the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the date of this
report, certain covenants and undertakings as referred to in Note 2.1, was: (i)
removed and replaced by a new covenant and undertaking pursuant to a
revised banking facility letter issued by the lending bank, and (i) waived by the
lending bank for a period up to 30 August 2020. The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that would result from a failure to resume trading
in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, to have additional
waiver granted by the lending bank and to obtain alternative credit facilities for
financing the working capital and financial commitments of the Group for the
foreseeable future.

Notwithstanding the conditions described above and in the Independent
Auditor’s Report, the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis on the assumption that the Group will be able to operate as a
going concern which in the opinion of the directors that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations in the next twelve months
from 31 March 2020, after taking into consideration several measures and
arrangements as detailed in Note 2.1. Accordingly, the directors are of the
view that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going

concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have been
designed to protect assets from misappropriation and unauthorised
transactions and to manage operational risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and makes relevant

recommendations.

The management, in coordination with department heads and operation
teams, regularly assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, ranked these risks
according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on the Group,
provided treatment plans, and monitored the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on any findings and measures
to address the variances and identified risks. Such internal audit function aims
to examine key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material
controls, identify deficiencies and ineffectiveness in the design and
implementation of internal controls, and propose recommendations for

improvement.

The Company has procedures and internal controls measures for the
Company'’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

The Company also established procedures to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.
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An independent risk assessment and internal control review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems has
been performed by an external consulting firm during the year. Such risk
assessment and internal control review aims to examine key issues in relation
to the accounting practices and all material controls, identify deficiencies and
ineffective parts in the design and implementation of internal controls, and
propose recommendations for improvement.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board, in conjunction with the
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources on internal audit, operational
and compliance controls; and financial reporting function; as well as staff
qualifications, experience, training programmes and related resources. The
Board considered that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2020 was effective and adequate and
no significant areas of concern has been identified.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Yip Keung (also an
executive director of the Company), who fulfils the qualification requirements
laid down in the Listing Rules. Biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual
report. During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Chan has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in
this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, in respect of
audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
analyzed below:
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Fee paid/
Type of services provided by the external auditor payable
SN BT IR ALAY PR A Bt EER
(HKS)
(B7T)
Audit service — audit fee for the year ended BEIRTE — B E20205E3A31 B IFFE

31 March 2020 ZIZEER 1,350,000

Non-audit services — services provided in connection with IEZERTE — R LEETEFIRENRE
certain agreed-upon procedures 370,000
Total: #Et 1,720,000

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.
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The Company maintains a website at www.pinecaregroup.com as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations and
other information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company as follows:

Address: G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street,
Tsz Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: investorrelations@pinecaregroup.com
Tel: (852) 2813 8102
Fax: (852) 3020 8779

Enquiries and requests will be dealt with by the Company in an informative
and timely manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Board members and senior staff will
be available to answer questions raised by the shareholders at general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company will invite representatives
of the auditor to attend its annual general meeting to answer shareholders’
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including but
not limited to the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’ meeting.
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Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide their full names,
contact details and identification, in the originally signed written requisition,
notice or statement (as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required by law.

With respect to the shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election as
directors of the Company, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 January
2017, the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company was adopted with effect from 15 February 2017. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, there was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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OVERVIEW

This report is the fourth Environment, Social, Governance (“ESG”) Report
(“ESG Report”) published by the Company, which describes our relationship
with key stakeholders, and our approach in complying with applicable
regulations and guidelines regarding the provision of quality elderly home care
services, professional and business ethics and environmental protection. The
reporting year of this ESG Report is aligned with our financial year.

REPORTING STANDARD

This ESG Report was compiled in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. It is reported in compliance with the “comply or explain” provisions
and with reference to the “recommended disclosures” of the ESG Reporting
Guide.

REPORTING SCOPE

The reporting scope covers our eleven care and attention homes in Hong
Kong.

SOURCES OF DATA AND ASSURANCE TO
RELIABILITY

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our internal
statistical reports, internal policies and other internal documents. The Board
hereby confirms that no false or misleading statements were made in this ESG
Report.

BOARD APPROVAL

Upon review of the management team, this ESG Report was approved by the
Board on 26 June 2020.

ESG AND PINE CARE GROUP

Pine Care Group is a leading operator of care and attention homes, having
served the elderly in Hong Kong since 1989. The Group established its first
care and attention home in Hong Kong in 1989, and now operates a network
of eleven care and attention homes with 1,238 residential care places, across
nine districts in Hong Kong. Our two new upscale care and attention homes,
Pine Care Point and Patina Care have commenced their operations in FY2020.
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Since 1989, we have always emphasised on the quality and innovation of our
services, and have always operated based on our guiding principles, which
include: (i) competent people: attracting the best staff members possible and
having the right system in place to help them reach their full potentials; (i)
respect: respecting the elderly residents the way we would to our families; and
(iii) elderly first: putting the best interests of the elderly residents above all else.
In the past 31 years, through good and bad times, we have always held firmly
to these principles, and these are the principles that have guided us to where
we are today.

As the Group continues to define the standards of excellence in our elderly
care home services, we ensure that we act with integrity and comply with
applicable laws and regulations. Our employees uphold high standards of
ethical and best practice in the RCHE industry. The Group highly values its
employees and retains talents that stand as the backbone of our operations to
deliver consistent high quality of services to our customers.

We treasure our relationship with the other key stakeholders including bankers,
suppliers and the wider community, as well as minimise adverse environmental
impacts. We are able to maintain our sound relationship and obtain continuous
support from the key stakeholders. With the contribution from our employees,
we aim for continuous value creation within the community.

COMPLIANCE WITH ESG-RELATED REGULATIONS
The Group’s business is subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to,
among others, the licensing of care and attention homes, treatment of
pharmaceutical wastes, labour practices as well as protection of confidentiality
and personal data privacy.

Compliance with the law is the cornerstone of the sustainability of our
business. The Group has internal policies and systems in place designed with
a view to ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

MANAGEMENT OF ESG ASPECTS

The Group considers managing ESG risks as an important driver to the
sustainable growth of our business. The Board is responsible for evaluating
and determining our ESG-related risks, and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place. The
implementation of ESG strategies and programs is delegated to our home
managers and deputy home managers.
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Stakeholder engagement

We strive to align our business practices with various stakeholders’ needs and

expectations in order to achieve sustainable development of the Group. Key

stakeholders have been identified and their areas of attention are discussed in

this ESG Report.
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Customers o Service quality and customer safety < Customer hotline
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Remuneration and benefits protection

i B AR AR EE

Legal compliance
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Elderly care industry development
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Performance growth and return on investment <
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Business operation risks
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Materiality assessment EMFE

We conducted materiality analysis to identify stakeholders’ areas of attention KPETEEE DI AR D EE R I ESN
with regards to our business and sustainable development. The following — AJ#FE R AR T T o LA T BIEW 3% Bl A 8 3 9
issues were identified to be material for both our stakeholders and business. BN EREFEMSHBEE - AREHESZEE
These issues will be discussed in more detail when addressing the four el A EEXRE A EEH 2SS HERSMA

sustainability aspects in the corresponding sections of this report. SR e
Sustainability aspects High materiality issues Medium materiality issues Low materiality issues
AFERREAE SEEMEE PEEMER REEMEE
Operating practices i) Legal compliance (i) Supply chain management Intellectual property
CERR BAE HEsEE AR ERE
(ii) Service quality and (ii) Anti-corruption
customer safety R&ES
REEERRFLE (i)  Data security
(i) Customers’ rights and e

privacy protection

BN R AL RRIE

Human capital Talent recruitment and (i) Occupational health and LLabour standards
ANEZ retention safety A4 T R
AM R B 15 2 BERENLTE

(ii) Employee training and
development
EEHEIIRERE

Environmental Waste management Greenhouse gas emissions and Use of energy and water
R REZE YRR IR mitigation BEIR SRR
B = RO ER

Community Contribution to community
HE HEEER
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OUR SERVICES

The Group is committed to quality excellence and recognises that continual
improvements are vital to enhancing competitiveness as well as customer
satisfaction. We aim to ensure the delivery of quality services.

The Group has implemented standardised management and operational
procedures across our network of care and attention homes to ensure
consistency of service quality and to enhance resident experience. These
management and operational procedures cover areas that are required under
the RCHE Code of Practice, Residential Care Home (Elderly Persons)
Ordinance (RCH(EP)O) and its subsidiary legislation, the Service Quality
Standards issued by the SWD, ISO 9001 quality management system and the
ISQua standards accredited by the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology.

Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee

The Group has established a Quality Assurance Monitoring Committee
(“QAMC”) to oversee the quality of the elderly care services provided to our
residents. The composition of the QAMC includes the management team,
employees, residents, families of residents and parties independent of the
Company.

The QAMC is responsible for conducting surprise audits on our care and
attention homes and subsequent to such audits, providing objective feedbacks
to improve our operational processes. The audit system includes review of the
bedrooms, facilities, meal provision service, medicine dispensation, nursing
service, provision of social activities and attitude of employees. On-site
inspections are also conducted from time to time by QAMC members.

Residential Aged Care Accreditation Scheme

The Group is accredited under the Residential Aged Care Accreditation
Scheme of the Hong Kong Association of Gerontology. Such accreditation
programme promotes best practices in the RCHE industry, and is currently
the only scheme in Hong Kong recognised internationally, by The International
Society for Quality in Health Care. Accreditation under this scheme ensures
that our care and attention homes have, among others, established effective
governance; provided a safe, hygienic and comfortable environment, facilities
and services for our residents; established a set of planning, supervision and
service improvement processes to meet the needs of residents; and
established an effective information management system.
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Individual Care Plan

The Group understands that the specific needs of every elderly resident are
different. As a result, every one of our elderly residents has an individual care
plan that is designed specific to his/her own needs, which is periodically
reviewed and fine-tuned according to progress.

When a new resident is admitted, a three-pronged evaluation of his/her
conditions is conducted by a nurse, a social worker, and a physiotherapist.
Based on the results of the evaluation, an individual care plan is designed to
meet the specific needs of the resident. The plan is then carried out for a
period of 6 months, at which point the plan is re-evaluated and new objectives
for the next 6 months are set. This ensures that the elderly resident always
receives the best and most appropriate care possible.

Periodic Surveys and Service Quality Team

We conduct periodic surveys with residents and their families. We then
conduct management review meetings to review the survey results and
identify key improvement areas and opportunities, and design and implement
measures to improve on identified deficiencies.

We have also participated in the “Residential Care Homes for the Elderly
Service Quality Team” plan of the SWD since 2013, pursuant to which
members of the service quality team will visit our care and attention homes on
a regular basis. After such visits, the service quality team will make
recommendations to the Group and the SWD will follow up on these with us.

Safeguarding Customers’ Rights

We respect every customer without regard to individual differences. The
Group does not tolerate any discrimination and ensures that every customer is
treated equally while using our elderly home care services.

Customers are welcomed to provide feedback or file complaints directly to our
frontline staff or through complaint handling hotline which allows complainants
to submit their complaints on an anonymous basis to an operator,
independent of our care and attention homes. A customer service team takes
immediate action on receipt of any complaint, resolving or following up the
complaint until resolution. We treat complaints seriously and view them as a

means to consistently improve our service level and quality.
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Protection of Customer Information

The Group considers that privacy and security of information are critical
operating principles. The Group has implemented comprehensive information
privacy and information security programmes to protect personal privacy. We
are committed to the compliance of relevant laws and regulations. We
recognise the importance of keeping personal information of our residents in
strict confidence.

The right of a resident to privacy is essential in the RCHE industry, and our
residents expect us to keep their information strictly confidential. We are
subject to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) which restricts the use of personal data of residents collected by
us for specific purposes, such as the provision of information on home events
and activities. We obtain consent from residents before we collect and use
such personal information.

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws and regulations on
customer data protection and privacy. Any unauthorised copying,
dissemination or disclosure of confidential information, including identities and
transaction records of customers, are strictly prohibited.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any serious violation of
relevant laws and regulations which would have material effects on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

We proactively communicate with our suppliers including traders of groceries,
intermediaries referring professional and qualified staff, and medical care
product companies to ensure that they are committed to delivering high-
quality food and beverages, medical products, consumables and professional
services. We effectively implement assessment processes on suppliers
through conducting regular evaluation on the performance of contracts and
other measures, to ensure the performance of our suppliers. The procurement
of equipment, products and services is undertaken through open and fair
competition.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 457 employees which
comprises operation staff and corporate staff. The Group highly values its
employees, as the workforce is not only the most valuable asset of the Group
but is also the solid foundation for sustainable development. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations regarding employment in Hong
Kong and ensures employees are reasonably remunerated.
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OUR WORKFORCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Total workforce

Composition by gender
Female
Male

Composition by employee category
Operation staff
Corporate staff

Composition by age group
> 50
31-50
30 or below

WORKFORCE TURNOVER RATE FOR FY2020

Overall turnover rate

Turnover rate by gender
Female
Male

Turnover rate by employee category
Operation staff
Corporate staff

Turnover rate by age group
> 50
31-50
30 or below

The overall employee turnover rate of the Group during the FY2020 was 28%.
The turnover rate of operation staff was higher than corporate staff, with the
ratio being 27% and 1% respectively. In terms of the age profile, the
employees aged between 31 to 50 had the highest turnover rate of 13% while
the group aged 30 or below had the lowest turnover rate of 7%.
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Employment

A Staff Handbook provides the necessary information and guidelines on codes
of conduct, equal opportunity, termination of service, rewards and penalties,
leave entitlement, and other relevant matters. Employees are recruited,
remunerated and promoted on the basis of merit, including qualifications,
competence, matching expertise to requirements of the post, and contribution
to the Group. No limits are imposed on age or gender, and there is no
discrimination in favour or against any group of employees.

In addition, the Group employs imported workers through the Supplementary
Labour Scheme (“SLS”) of the Labour Department. We confirm that, all
imported workers employed by the Group have valid visa/entry permit to work
in Hong Kong and there is no breach of any of the conditions imposed under
the SLS.

Employees enjoy rights as provided for by laws and the systems of the Group.
Employees of different backgrounds and qualifications enjoy equal promotion
opportunity, salary adjustment, training and development provision. The Group
respects and protects these rights, and will not tolerate any discriminatory
acts in the Group.

During the reporting period, there was no non-compliance or breach of
legislation related to applicable employment laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees. We endeavour to comply with all
relevant laws and regulations on health and safety by routine evaluation of the
hazards and safety of our care and attention homes. We have instituted
internal safety policies and systems to ensure strict compliance with such
requirements.

Due to the nature of our business, incidents at our care and attention homes
could have detrimental effects on the health and safety of our employees and
residents. Accordingly, we have established standardised workplace health
and safety procedures and all employees are required to comply with such in
the operation of our care and attention homes. These procedures are part of
our customised safety management system, with our Head of Operations, Mr.
Yim Edwin Pui Hin, in charge. Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin oversees compliance
with all workplace health and safety measures.
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The Group has set up an Occupational Health and Safety Committee, to
conduct regular reviews of staff health and safety issues, assess latent crisis
possibility, identify risks and suggest solutions to ensure a safe working
environment and minimising the probability of accidents. We have developed
an effective mechanism to improve the procedures for reporting industrial
injury accidents so that injured employees could obtain support and follow-up
labour compensation. Contingency procedures and review mechanisms have
been set up to provide appropriate measures to prevent similar accidents.

The Group complies with the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“BO”) and subsidiary legislation relating to the planning, design
and construction of buildings and associated works and regular inspection of
buildings and associated repairs to prevent buildings from becoming unsafe.

The Group complies with requirements and specifications for fire service
installations and equipment to be provided for Residential Care Homes for the
Elderly (RCHE), based on Codes of Practice for Minimum Fire Service
Installations and Equipment and Inspection, Testing and Maintenance of
Installations and Equipment issued by the Fire Services Department from time

to time.

All fire service installations and equipment installed in the Group’s care and
attention homes are maintained in efficient working order at all times and
inspected by a registered fire service installation contractor at least once every
12 months, in accordance with the Fire Service (Installations and Equipment)
Regulation (Chapter 95B of the Laws of Hong Kong).

In the reporting period, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations on health and safety and there were no recorded work-related
injuries or fatalities.

Development and Training
The Group places great importance on continuing development of professional
knowledge and skills for employees.

The Group has established policies on staff development and training. The
Group provides both internal and external training opportunities for various
levels of employees, including management, operations and back office
supporting staff. The home managers and management team of each care
and attention home are expected to encourage and facilitate continuous
development of staff through internal or external training.
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Selected training sessions on occupational safety, stress management,
infection control, drug management, nursing care, mid-career study and job-
related seminars are conducted by professional training organisations or
consulting companies. These enable our staff to keep abreast of the latest
development in care for the elderly and safety and health at work. Skills
covered include proper manual handling technique, enhancing awareness of
drug safety management and effective infection control measures.

The Group aims to retain a skilled workforce through systematic training and
professional development and training, which is a recognised attribute of our
dedicated management and workforce.

We believe that our commitment to employee excellence will lead to the
continued growth of our business and enhancement of the quality of services
provided to our residents. Accordingly, we will continue to increase efforts in
human resources management and retention. We are confident that such
efforts will enhance our reputation and appeal as an employer of choice in the
RCHE industry.

The Group will continue to implement an internal rotation system for
management personnel to provide them with greater exposure to our
operations; to develop a career advancement programme with a clearly
identifiable long-term career path to motivate our employees; and to devise
rewards programmes which would encourage our staff to attend training
courses offered by external institutions.

Labour Standards

The Group attaches great importance to and strictly abides by all applicable
labour laws and regulations on employment such as Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and their respective
subsidiary legislations in Hong Kong.

The Group considers child and forced labour unacceptable and must be
strictly prohibited. The Group has instituted a comprehensive screening and
recruiting process to prohibit the use of child labour.

Employee work schedules are set up fairly to keep within standard working
hours. All employees are provided with appropriate leave entitlements,
including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compassionate leave.
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Anti-corruption and Business Ethics

The Group is well aware of the importance of honesty, integrity and fairness,
and has included anti-corruption policy such as giving and taking interests and
declaration of conflicts of interests in our staff manual. Through the
establishment of these policies, we encourage all employees to discharge their
duties with integrity and to comply with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical standards and
maintaining a corporate culture of integrity and justice for preventing, detecting
and reporting all types of fraud, including corruption. Employees at all levels
are expected to conduct themselves with integrity, impartiality and honesty.
We have established effective anti-corruption procedures, including declaration
of interests, whistleblowing, among others.

Our whistleblowing policy facilitates staff to discreetly report any misconduct
or dishonest activities, such as suspected corruption, fraud and other forms of
criminality by email to the Company’s Audit Committee or the Company
secretary.

The whistleblowing policy documents set out the whistleblowing handling
system for the establishment and maintenance of the highest possible
standards of openness, probity and accountability for employees to raise their
concerns in confidence without fear of harassment, reprisal, victimisation,
discrimination or disadvantage.

The Group has set up a working committee, comprising the Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Head of Human Resources, to take responsibility for
evaluating every report received and decide if a full investigation is necessary.
The working committee is responsible for reporting to the Audit Committee the
issue, the result of investigation and the corrective action taken to ensure the
Audit Committee is informed and the issue would hopefully not occur again in
the future.

During the reporting period, there was no legal case regarding corrupt
practices nor any case of corruption found or reported by the Group and the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that had significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

As the Group operates care and attention homes for the elderly in Hong Kong
offering a comprehensive range of residential care services, emissions such as
air pollutants arising from the fuel usage of company cars, are insignificant as
compared to companies in certain industries such as manufacturing.

The Group endeavours to comply with applicable environmental laws and
regulations and has adopted effective measures to reduce wastage, such as
using more energy-efficient equipment and adopting environment-friendly
disposal procedures. Our employees are fully aware that it is important to
minimise the impact on the environment and natural resources when

conducting Group operations.

Treatment of Waste

A total of approximately 781 kilograms of chemical and clinical wastes was
generated during the year. The Group handles the pharmaceutical products at
our care and attention homes on a day-to-day basis and disposes chemical
and clinical wastes with care. We deal with the disposal of pharmaceutical
products in accordance with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation (Chapter 354C of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal
(Clinical Waste) (General) Regulation (Chapter 3450 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

We have implemented a set of internal policies and guidelines to ensure that
the disposal of chemical and clinical wastes and pharmaceutical substances
are carried out in a safe manner. We have engaged chemical and clinical
waste collection service providers to dispose of our chemical and clinical
wastes. In relation to hazardous waste such as expired and unwanted
pharmaceutical products, we have engaged qualified waste disposal and
recycling companies licensed by the Environmental Protection Department to
handle the disposals.

Non-hazardous waste disposed totalled approximately 7,161 kilograms during
the year. To maintain hygiene at our elderly care homes and protect our
residents from infection, we consider using disposable items necessary and
room for reducing non-hazardous waste is limited. It is our policy to educate
our staff to recycle resources and to avoid unnecessary consumption and
disposal of materials. During FY2020, a total of approximately 0.6 tonne of
waste paper was recycled.

In addition, to improve the air quality, the Group has installed high-
performance air purifier equipment such as germicidal air deodorisers for smell
control and purification.
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Resources Consumption
Resources used in the operation are mainly electricity, water, fuel gas for car
and printing paper.

Emissions generated by the Group were mainly indirect greenhouse gases
(“GHGs”) emissions generated from the use of electricity and gas. During the
year, there were a total of Scope 2 — energy indirect emissions of
approximately 4,214 in tonnes, carbon dioxide (“CO2”) equivalent.

A total amount of electricity of approximately 5,084,074 kilowatt hours and a
total amount of water of approximately 42,746 tonnes were consumed during
the year.

The Group has implemented energy and water saving practices, resulting in
low consumption levels. To reduce energy consumption, the Group has
installed the CarbonCare LED, which combines LED lighting with un-validated
carbon offset programmes to offer a climate-friendly solution to the usage of
lighting. The workplace temperature has been maintained at a comfortable
level of 25°C to encourage energy conservation and to reduce emissions. Staff
are encouraged to minimise paper, water and electricity consumption.

OUR COMMUNITY

With the commitment to being a socially responsible corporation, the Group
has been named by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service as a “Caring
Company” since our establishment. The Group encourages our staff and our
residents to contribute their time and efforts in participating in local community
activities and events. Examples are as follows:
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Community Health Day

In January 2020, same as in the previous years, New Pine Care Centre
organised a free health check for elderly in the Shun Lei Estate community,
approximately 500 people had benefited from these free health checks.

Love Print — Life Review Volunteer Program

In 2019, New Pine Care Centre has cooperated with the Department of
Psychology of the Chinese University of Hong Kong to organise the “Love
Print — Life Review Volunteer Program” by which volunteers and our social
workers helped to customise personal autobiographical life stories for 10
participating residents that are shared with them and their family members.
Each life story records the childhood, juvenile, development, and motto of the
fellows, which are enjoyable and inspiring for the sharing.

Co-organised Volunteer Event

In July 2019, Pine Care (Lee Foo) Elderly Centre has cooperated with the
Hong Kong Institute of Animal Assisted Intervention to organise a volunteer
event by which we aimed to let our participating residents to realise the
kindness of the animals and encourage them to explore new things and stay

active.

“Your Story ¢ My Enlightenment” Community Story Series
Project

From June 2019 to January 2020, Pine Care (Manning) Elderly Centre
participated in a cross-generational inclusive project planned by “Under
Production” and funded by Community Investment and Inclusion Fund.
Through interactions and communication between young people and our
participating residents within the six month periods, records of “dialogue” and
“listen” were established to promote neighborhood relations, and thereby
enhance the image and value of elders in the district.

Through project, we aimed to bring the youths and elders closer, arise young
people’s attention to community issues, gather young people’s strength to
build a community of communion; and promote the message of loving and
caring for the elderly. After the event, books based on photos would be
published to promote the integration of the youths and the elders with different
angles and elements, and at the same time the books also would become a
souvenir for our participating residents.

Donations
During the reporting period, the Company made an aggregate donations of
HK$97,300 to The Community Chest as well as other charitable organisations.
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HKEX’S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls
BH —REERER
BRER

Descriptions

B
=1

BRPTRE - tERERRERS

Related chapters
in this report

R ENERED

Aspect A1: Emissions
BHE A1 HERY)
General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
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Our Environment
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Our major operation is to
operate elderly care
homes, providing elderly
home care services. Our
activities do not emit air
pollutants and discharge
into water in significant
quantities.
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We are in compliance with
the relevant laws and
regulations on generation
of chemical wastes, clinical
wastes and the disposal of
pharmaceutical products.
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Aspects, General

Related chapters

Disclosures and KPIs Descriptions in this report Remarks

B —REERER

BRER it A EANEBES B

KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective Not material Our activities do not emit
FAREIEIZ AT A emissions data. WTEKXR air pollutants and

KPIA1.2
RARAIEIRAL.2

KPIA1.3
FAREIEIRALS

KPI A1.4
RBEMIEIR A4

KPI A1.5
FARHEMIEIRALS

KPI A1.6
FABHE RIS IRAL.6
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HEmR )RR R AR RR B R -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BEREEATIE (AN E) K (Es) =
ENABESSEN - BERMAE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per facility).

FELATEERDEE AME) k(13
R)BE(MABEESEN - BEREAE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.,
per unit of production volume, per facility).
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Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

RRBIR PR BB HE NPT SRCR -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous waste is handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
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Our Environment
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Our Environment

BAIRIRE

Our Environment

HPIERS

Our Environment

HPIERE

Our Environment

HPIERS

effluents in significant
quantities.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs
BE- - —RIEERER

BER

Descriptions

i

Related chapters
in this report

R ENERED

Remarks

B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EEA2 - BIR(ER

General Disclosure

—ARIEE

KPI A2.1
RS IE B IR A2

KPI A2.2
FARAMRIEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3
FASHEMIEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
FgEIIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
RARAMIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
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FIER ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g., electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
"000s) and intensity (e.g., per unit of
production volume, per facility).
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NEBESEN - BERMEAE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.,
per unit of production volume, per facility).
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Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

He s BE IR 6 FA e A B KPS AR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
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Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.
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Our Environment

HIPIMRS

Our Environment

HPIMRE

Our Environment
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Our Environment

HPIMRE

Not material
WTARER

Not material
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We consume municipal
water mainly for elderly
home care services but
not in significant
quantities. Our policy
therefore does not cover
consumption of water.
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Our operation has no
issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose.
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Our activities do not
create packaging material
in significant quantities.
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Aspects, General Related chapters

Disclosures and KPIs
BE- - —REERER
BEMIER

Descriptions in this report

i FHRENERED

Remarks

i

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[ET A3 : IRIZERRAER
General Disclosure

— R

KPI A3.1
RS IEIEIR A1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant  Not material
impact on the environment and natural I REKX
resources.

g

i

MEBETABRERRARERERERNZS
FIRER

I

Description of the significant impacts of = Not material
activities on the environment and natural I TEKX
resources and the actions taken to manage

them.

Our operation does not
have a significant impact
on the natural
environment and the
availability of natural
resources.

BMmEErEHAR
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Our operation does not
have a significant impact
on the natural
environment and the
availability of natural

M EBEBHRERRAERNEALE resources.
MERRERGETEN 178 -
BMMEETEHER
RIERKXARERNT A

REBRERTE -
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls
BH —REERER
BRER

Related chapters

Descriptions in this report

i R ENERED

Remarks

B

Aspect B1: Employment
M B1 : (1%

General Disclosure

—RIKER

Information on: Our Employees

We are in compliance

BMHES with the laws and
(@) the policies; and regulations related to
employment and labour
(b) compliance with relevant laws and practices, including those
regulations that have a significant related to compensation
impact on the issuer and dismissal,
recruitment and
relating to compensation and dismissal, promotion, working
recruitment and promotion, working hours, hours, rest periods, equal
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, opportunity diversity, and
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and anti-discrimination.
welfare.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls
B —REERER
BRER

Related chapters
Descriptions in this report

i FHRENERED

Remarks

i

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[ETH B2 : fEREZ S

General Disclosure

— R
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Information on: Our Employees

BMREES
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
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We are in compliance
with the laws and
regulations related to
working environment and
occupational health and
safety.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls
BH —REERER
BRER it

Descriptions

Related chapters
in this report

R ENERED

Remarks

B

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ET B3 : & &iEI
General Disclosure

—RIKER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BT B4 : 5T AR

General Disclosure

—fRINEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge  Our Employees

and skills for discharging duties at work. BHwES

Description of training activities.

BRI B E1T T/ER A S A M
BUR - W AIEFES) -

Information on:

BMES

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Our Employees

I%%%

We have established
policies on staff
development and
training.
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QOur employment
practices are in
compliance with the
relevant labour laws and
regulations, and we do
not employ any child or
forced labour.
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Aspects, General

Related chapters

Disclosures and KPIs Descriptions in this report Remarks

BE- - —REEREE

BmRER g B EREEEE i

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EH B5 : ftEEE IR

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and Our Services We conduct regular
—R %R social risks of the supply chain. BIH AR evaluation to assess the
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHB6: EmEM
General Disclosure

—RRIER

Information on:

() the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods
of redress.
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K351
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ESG and Pine Care
Group

Compliance with
ESG - related

regulations

Our Services

ESG MRt EEEE

BT ESGHRER G

HAPIE B 75

quality of our supply
chain. The procurement
is undertaken through
open and fair
competition.

BAVE B (TR AT
B - IR
BARRATHBETE
R

We are in compliance
with the laws and
regulations related to
RCHE Code of Practice
Residential Care Home
(Eldery Persons)
Ordinance (RCH(EP)O)
and its subsidiary
legislation.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls
BH —REERER
BRER

Descriptions

i

Related chapters
in this report

R ENERED

Remarks

B

Aspect B7: Anticorruption
[E®E B7 : R&E)S
General Disclosure

—RIKER

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRADTEHEEE - B3R - BRFFROAR BN

@ BE:R

b)) BEBTHETABEAZENHERER
&Rl

AR -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[Em B8 : HtRigE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to

Our Employees

#MmER

Our Community

—MEE understand the needs of E IR
the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
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We have established and
complied with policies
regarding anti-corruption

B EE ST AR
REISHIBUR

We encourage our staff
and our residents to
participate in community

activities and events
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

The directors of Pine Care Group Limited present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, whilst its major
operating subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of elderly home care

services.

The business review required under Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
under review using financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” (pages 10 to 12) and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” (pages 13 to 21) of this annual report, and a
description of the environmental policies and performance is set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 50 to 73 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

An analysis of the revenue and operating segment information during the
financial year is set out in note 6 and note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements respectively.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A list of principal subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation and
particulars of their issued ordinary share capital and principal activities, is set
out in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for FY2020, and the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 106 to 109 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company attaches great importance to returns to investors and maintain
the continuity and stability of its profit distribution policy. According to the
dividend policy adopted by the Company, the Board would consider the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company, as well as other factors
the Board may consider relevant, before declaring or recommending
dividends.

DIVIDENDS

On 21 November 2019, the Board resolved to declare an interim dividend of
HKO0.78 cent per ordinary share to the Company’s shareholders, representing
a total of approximately HK$7,042,000 for FY2020.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.68 cent per
ordinary share for FY2020 (FY2019: HKO.78 cent). The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the 2020 AGM
to be held on Friday, 28 August 2020 and is payable to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Friday, 11 September 2020. It is expected that the
final dividend, if approved, will be paid on Tuesday, 6 October 2020.

Together with the interim dividend of HKO0.78 cent per ordinary share declared
for FY2020, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2020 wil
be HK1.46 cents per ordinary share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 26
August 2020 to Friday, 28 August 2020, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2020 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 25 August 2020.

For determining the entitlement to the said proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 9 September
2020 to Friday, 11 September 2020, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the said
proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at the above address for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 8 September 2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated financial position
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2020 is set out on
page 200 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

We treasure our relationship with the key stakeholders which comprise
customers, employees, bankers and suppliers, and we are able to maintain
our sound relationship and obtain continuous support from the key
stakeholders so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For FY2020, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 47.5%, while the sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer during the year under review were approximately
46.1%.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
during the year under review were approximately 67.8%, while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier during the year under review were
approximately 17.6%.

Save for Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, the former controlling shareholder, the Chairman
of the Board and executive director of the Company, who was beneficially
interested in 6.8% of the issued shares in the Group’s second largest supplier,
none of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had an interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers for
FY2020.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year under review are
set out in note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Movements in the
reserves of the Group are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
March 2020 amounted to approximately HK$155.9 million (2019: HK$148.8
million).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$97,300.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out
in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year under review are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
under review or subsisted at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January 2017. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options
to the eligible participants to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, but are not limited
to, (i) any employee or director of any member of the Group or of any company
in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, an equity interest (the
“Invested Entity”) (including any full-time or part-time employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive director); (ii)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iii) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity.
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The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant an option to eligible
participant(s) to subscribe for the shares of the Company at an exercise price
and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee to
the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and stated in the
offer to a grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before the exercise of an option
granted to him/her.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company to the grantee thereof, and in the absence of such
determination, from the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such option lapses under the relevant provisions
of the Share Option Scheme; and (i) the date falling 10 years from the offer
date of that option.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in accordance with the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with the participant and the close associates of such
participant (or his/her/its associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares of the
Company in aggregate and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of offer) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
general meeting.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board, but shall be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares of the Company on the date of offer of the option; (i the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Company'’s share.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years commencing on
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 86,400,000 shares,
representing 10% of the Company’s shares in issue on the date of listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and approximately 9.57% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this report. No option has
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (Chairman) (appointed on 23 March 2020)
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei (Chief executive officer)

Mr. Chan Yip Keung (Chief financial officer)

Mr. Yeung Ka Wing (appointed on 23 March 2020)

Mr. Cheng Wai Ching (appointed on 23 March 2020)

Mr. Yim Ting Kwok (resigned on 23 March 2020)

Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin (resigned on 23 March 2020)

Non-executive directors

Dr. Tang Yiu Pong (appointed on 23 March 2020)

Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert (appointed on 23 March 2020)
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex (resigned on 23 March 2020)

Mr. Lam Yat Hon (resigned on 23 March 2020)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang

Dr. Wong Ping San John

Dr. Liu Yuk Shing

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony (appointed on 23 March 2020)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chan Yip Keung and Dr. Liu Yuk
Shing shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM, whereas pursuant to Article 83
of the Articles, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Yeung Ka Wing, Mr. Cheng Wai Ching,
Dr. Tang Yiu Pong, Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert and Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony
shall hold office only until the 2020 AGM. All of the above retiring directors are
eligible for re-election at the 2020 AGM.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 22 to 30 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract with the Company that is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the directors. The
remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring by the
Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” and note 36 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme operated by the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither at the end of nor
at any time during the year there subsisted any arrangement to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and the objects of or one of
the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (including those for provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders) has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year under review.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions (the “CCT”), details of which are set out below in
compliance with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A) Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement
A tenancy agreement (the “Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement”) was entered
into between Zhejiang Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited
(“Zhejiang Pine Care Yada”, a subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and
Zhejiang Yada International Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited
(“Zhejiang Yada International”) as lessor.

Date: 29 November 2017

The term of the tenancy: 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2027

Upon expiration of the term of the tenancy, Zhejiang Pine Care Yada
has the first right to renew the lease.

Premises being leased: Pursuant to the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement,
Zhejiang Yada International agreed to lease to Zhejiang Pine Care Yada
the whole of Third Floors in Buildings C1 & C2 of Zhejiang Yada
International Rehabilitation Hospital, Wuzhen Town, Tongxiang City,
Zhejiang Province, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), with a
total floor area of approximately 7,190 square metres (equivalent to
approximately 77,400 square feet) (the “Zhejiang Premises”) for setting
up residential care home for elderly. The Zhejiang Premises is of great
convenience to the elderly residents to obtain medical support, which is
ideal for establishment of a quality elderly residential care home and
enables the Group to strengthen its branding in the Mainland China.

Basis of pricing: The rentals under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement
are determined with reference to and taking into account (i) the
prevailing market rental of similar properties with similar business nature
in nearby locations in Zhejiang, the PRC; (i) the location of the Zhejiang
Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in future.
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Rental: The rental for the Zhejiang Premises on an annual basis from
years 2018 to 2021 is RMB3,019,800 (the “Annual Rental”). In order to
support the development of the business of Zhejiang Pine Care Yada,

Zhejiang Yada International and Zhejiang Pine Care Yada agree that:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

For the period from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2017:
rent-free period, but property management fees and utilities fees
shall be borne by Zhejiang Pine Care Yada;

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018: 20%
of the Annual Rental;

For the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019: 50%
of the Annual Rental;

For the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020: 80%
of the Annual Rental;

For the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021:
Annual Rental; and

For the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2027: the
rental (on annual basis) shall increase from the Annual Rental by
8% every 2 years.

The above rental does not include property management fees and

utilities fees (including water, electricity, heating, gas, telephone, data,

cable television charges, etc.).
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Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement, which are determined based
on the rental to be received by Zhejiang Yada International in respect of
the tenancy, are as follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March

FELER:MNIEERRBTRETNRS
F 2 IR Ty AR HBOM T e i B0 B st A B R
BESERE - WEIIWT

BZE3AMALEE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
2018 (from 1 December 2017) 2018F (H2017F 12 A1 A#E) 160
2019 20194 880
2020 20204 1,830
2021 2021 4 2,700
2022 2022 4 3,240
2023 20234 3,430
2024 2024 4 3,500
2025 20254 3,700
2026 2026 4 3,780
2027 2027 £ 4,000
2028 (up to 31 December 2027) 2028 F (HEZE2027F 12 A31 H) 3,000

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to approximately RMB1,736,000.

Yada International (HK) Limited (“Yada HK”) is a substantial shareholder
of Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Limited, which is a subsidiary of the
Company. Yada HK and Yada Healthcare Industry Development Co.,
Limited (“Yada Health”) are fellow subsidiaries of Yada International
Holdings Limited and Zhejiang Yada International is a subsidiary of Yada
Health. Accordingly, Zhejiang Yada International is an associate of Yada
HK and therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary
level. The entering into of the Zhejiang Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 November 2017.

HZE2020F 3831 HILFENEMNHEEEE
#45 NRH1,736,000 7T °

HEEREEEB) BERARTHERLED
BARFMEBARMREEERSEZRBERA
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BRERAR(THERE) RIEEREEES
RARKERMEQR  MANTIEZERRER
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Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the “Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement”) was
entered into between Patina Wellness Limited (“Patina Wellness”, a
subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and Everhost Limited (“Everhost”)
as lessor.

Date: 13 April 2018

The term of the tenancy: 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2028

Premises being leased: Pursuant to the Patina Wellness Tenancy
Agreement, Everhost agreed to lease to Patina Wellness the building
named “Patina” and situated at 18 Junction Road, Kowloon City, Hong
Kong, excluding 30th Floor and the flat roof together with 2 carparks,
with a total floor area of approximately 84,000 square feet (the “Patina
Premises”) for setting up and operating residential care home for the
elderly, clinic, service apartments, clubhouse and restaurant.

The Patina Premises will enable the Group to expand its business in
Hong Kong for the operation of an upscale community for the elderly
with the concept of an “Integrated Senior Wellness Hub” to expand its
business coverage to active seniors who require a lower level of care
compared to traditional RCHE residents, while at the same time, widen
the breadth of its service offerings for this emerging market segment.

Basis of pricing: The rentals payable under the Patina Wellness
Tenancy Agreement are determined with reference to and taking into
account (i) prevailing market rents for comparable premises in the area
where the Patina Premises are situated; (i) the location of the Patina
Premises; and (iii) the expected inflation rate in the future.
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Rental: Details of monthly rental for the Patina Premises (exclusive of
rates and management fees and all other outgoings) are set out as
follows:

(i) From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2022, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,000,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher;

(i) From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,320,000 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher; and

(iii) From 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2028, the monthly rental shall be
HK$2,691,200 or 38% of the gross revenue of Patina Wellness
for each month, whichever is higher.

Rent-free period: Everhost shall grant to Patina Wellness a rent-free
period of not more than 3 calendar months commencing from 1 April
2018 for carrying out renovation and decoration works within the Patina
Premises, provided that such rent-free period in respect of the 79
service apartments on 7/F to 29/F of the Patina Premises shall cease
on the date on which Patina Wellness commences business at that
portion of the Patina Premises.

HE  WEYENEABESFHE(TREEM
NEBBEARAEEMSH) SBIIWT

()  2018F4F1BE202243 731 HHMH -
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Annual Caps: The annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement, which are determined
based on the rental to be received by Everhost in respect of the
tenancy, are as follows:

For the year ended/ending 31 March

FELR: WEZLEERZEE THETH
RH5FELERTIREXZHEEBEINE
SEE - WEIIWT

HZ3A31BILLEE

HK$

BT
2019 20194 23,208,600
2020 20204 24,000,000
2021 20214 24,000,000
2022 20224 24,000,000
2023 20234 27,840,000
2024 20244 27,840,000
2025 2025%F 27,840,000
2026 20264 32,294,400
2027 20274 32,294,400
2028 20284 32,294,400

The total amount of rental payable for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to approximately HK$24,000,000.

At the time when the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement was entered
into, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was a substantial shareholder of Patina
Wellness. Mr. Tang Shing Bor, the father of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, was
beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Everhost.
Accordingly, Everhost was an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and
therefore a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. The
entering into of the Patina Wellness Tenancy Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2018.

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing has become a substantial shareholder and an
executive director of the Company. Based on the relations mentioned in
the above paragraph, Everhost remains an associate of Mr. Tang Yiu
Sing, but becomes a connected person of the Company at issuer level.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed and
confirmed that the CCT had been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i)  according to the agreements governing such transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the CCT
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Interest in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERTEITHRAERRKRS - HER
NREF B IKR

20203 A31 8 » AREIEENARD A SR

E(TERBFLBEEMANTESRBERNDE
XVER) Pk B B AMMBIEE F & EE 501 28 352 fik
REFEZECMBBEETEMNGERARF R
BERZ AT 2 BR D~ R RESF R AR WDT ¢

Approximate
percentage*
of shareholding

Name of director Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares in the Company
AN R IRAERY
EEpE B EniE BB E BHOBE D
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Interest held by controlled corporations 272,496,000 (L) 30.18%
ilh oS e R EERENER (Note 2) (FfzE2)
Beneficial owner 263,576,000 (L) 29.19%
ERlAA
536,072,000 (L) 59.37%
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei Interest held by controlled corporations 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
BOmE A R EERANER (Note 3) (K#+£3)
Beneficial owner 320,000 (L) 0.08%
ERAA
135,624,000 (L) 15.02%
Mr. Chan Yip Keung Beneficial owner 1,888,000 (L) 0.21%
BREESR A BERlAA

38 | PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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Interest in the physical settled equity derivatives of the

RAQRBENEERANITETARESR !

Company:
Approximate
percentage*
Number of of shareholding
Name of director Capacity/nature of interest equity derivatives in the Company
hA A B RAER
EEnE B, RnitE BRASTETA#E BABED
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing Beneficial owner 63,216,000 (L) 7.00%
ilh oS e ERMAA (Note 4) (FffzE4)
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei Interest held by controlled corporations 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
BmE S A ZIEEER B (Note 4) (Kfizt4)
Notes: B 5E
1. The letter “L” represents the director’s long position in the shares/equity 1. FEHILIRRESHRARARRG,RASTET AR
derivatives of the Company, whereas letter “S” represents the director’s short HE MFEH[SIRREESNARRRATETA
position in the equity derivatives of the Company. HIAR ©
2. These shares were held by Starcorp Limited (for 224,176,000 shares) and 2. ZEROMBABRBRALEZERERIERBNAA
Smartbase Investments Limited (for 48,320,000 shares), corporations wholly Starcorp Limited & Smartbase Investments Limited 73
owned and controlled by Mr. Tang Yiu Sing. RIFEFA 224,176,000 A% A% 15 K2 48,320,000 AZ A7) ©
3. These shares are held by Pine Active Care Limited (“Pine Active Care”), whichis 3. % % % 19 i Pine Active Care Limited ([Pine Active
owned as to 90% by Silverage Pine Care Limited (“Silverage Pine Care”) and 10% Carel) £ & + MM Pine Active Care (5 Silverage Pine
by Silverage Pillar Limited (“Silverage Pillar”). Silverage Pine Care is in turn owned Care Limited ([ Silverage Pine Carel) & Silverage
as to an aggregate of 74.25% by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin (spouse Pillar Limited ([ Silverage Pillar]) % Bl # & 90% K&
of Mr. Yim Ting Kwok), Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty (spouse of 10% P& 4 ° Silverage Pine Care F1& & B4 ~ B ok
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex), Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin (senior Pt (BREBRSTENERES)  RESLLE BERE
management of the Company) and Ms. Chu Lai King (senior management of the ZH(REEEENRMB) BOHEL A - BHEL
Company); whereas Silverage Pillar is in turn owned as to an aggregate of 93.58% £ (RRFERERE) RAABRL L (KREERE
by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok and Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex. Therefore, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei BE) & HHEH 74.25% A : 1M Silverage Pillar F B
together with Silverage Pine Care, Silverage Pillar, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho FEEEERRBERES HHEH3.58% A -
Wing Yin, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin b RIEBFHFRAEGKAEXVE  BDELEEUR
and Ms. Chu Lai King are deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company Silverage Pine Care - Silverage Pillar + & & B/t 4 -
held by Pine Active Care pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Buiat - REEXLE  BEBEL LT - BH#HE
H RRBIRZ THR AR Pine Active Care % A H)3%
FEARARRG P HAER
4, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and Pine Active Care entered into a call option deed, pursuant 4. B2 5 5T A HiPine Active CareD 7] 32 -2 08 Bl 2245 -

to which the call options was granted and given to Mr. Tang (or his nominee(s))
the right to require Pine Active Care to transfer to him up to 63,216,000 shares.
Based on the relations set out in note 3 above, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei was deemed
to have the short position which Pine Active Care has pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares/equity derivatives
involved divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March
2020.

PRI - BB (R BAN) ERREHRE - WERE T
HEFIZ 3K Pine Active Care [7) 1§ 85 3% 5 % 63,216,000
A&AR 1 o B EXXCHIFE SFTE M BIR « IRIEE S KA
EIEBIEXVER « B E %k A AR A A Pine Active
Care T A HIAR ©

BHEALIEMSREBRMASTETAHE R
AR A R]A 20204 3 A 31 BB Z/TRMNEKE -

| R EEEEAE R AF
! 2020¢$&| 89



— 90

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On 5 February 2020, Pine Active Care as a vendor and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and
Mr. Tang Shing-bor as the purchasers (the “Purchasers”) entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (the “SPA”), pursuant to which the vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchasers (through companies held as to
100% by them) have conditionally agreed to purchase, in aggregate,
469,496,000 sale shares (the “Sale Shares”), representing approximately
52.00% of the existing issued share capital of the Company, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$773,259,912 (equivalent to HK$1.647 per Sale Share).
Completion of the SPA (the “Completion”) took place on 11 February 2020.

Mr. Tang Yiu Sing (and parties acting in concert with him) has become the
controlling shareholder of the Company upon the Completion. Subsequent to
the Completion, an unconditional mandatory cash offer was made to acquire
all the issued shares of the Company (other than those already owned or
agreed to be acquired by Mr. Tang Yiu Sing and parties acting in concert with
him) at a price of HK$1.647 per share (the “Offer”), and the Offer was closed
on 20 March 2020. Upon the close of the Offer, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Tang
Shing-bor and parties acting in concert with them were interested in, held,
controlled or directed an aggregate of 738,056,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 81.74 % of the then entire issued share capital of
the Company.

At the time when the SPA was entered into and upon completion of the Offer,
the prescribed minimum percentage of 25% of the Company’s issued shares
in public hands, as required by the Listing Rules, could not be maintained by
the Company. After Mr. Tang Yiu Sing became the controlling shareholder, he
has been in active discussions for the possible placement of new shares and/
or existing shares to independent third parties so as to restore the minimum
required public float of not less than 25% as soon as possible. However, given
the recent market uncertainties and volatility in capital markets caused by the
outbreak of COVID-19 since the first quarter of 2020, no definitive agreements
have been entered into with any of the potential placees yet as at the date of
this report. Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company regarding
restoration of the public float in the shares and resumption of trading in the
shares as and when appropriate in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTSAND FERFARDRAEBERD 2EER
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING R

SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the following parties (other than the directors or chief ~ A 20203 A31H ' L& F (A AT EEH T E
executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares or T A BRRIN) RAATIRDSAEBIRO T IES AL
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests  $ERIRIBEZEHF LEEIENEIBCIE 2R EFE 21

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: HEEMANERIAE -
Number of shares (L) Approximate
RO#EWL) Equity percentage*
Beneficial Corporate Family Concert  derivatives (S) Total  of shareholding
Name of shareholder owner interest interest party (Note 8) interest  in the Company
B
FTETA(S) fEARDFRAER
BERES/ €% BERERA DR RkEE  —RTBAL GED) BHEAH BREAL*
Smartbase Investments Limited 48,320,000 - - - - 48,320,000 (1) 5.35%
(Note 2) (P& 2)
Starcorp Limited 224,176,000 - - - - 224,176,000 (1) 24.83%
(Note 2) (Bif5E2)
Century Fortress Limited 130,800,000 - - - - 130,800,000 (L) 14.49%
(Note 3) (P 3)
Great Canton Investments Limited 71,184,000 - - - - 71,184,000 (1) 7.88%
(Note 3) (P 3)
Tang Shing-bor - 201,984,000 - - - 201,984,000 (1) 22.37%
HEOK (Note 3) (ff1z£3)
Pine Active Care Limited 135,304,000 - - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
(Note 4) (HizE4) 63,216,000 () 7.00%
Silverage Pillar Limited - 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
(Note 4) (Ff5£4) 63,216,000 () 7.00%
Silverage Pine Care Limited - 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
(Note 4) (i 4) 63,216,000 () 7.00%

| R EEEEAE R AF
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Number of shares (L)

Approximate
RGHEW) Equity percentage*
Beneficial Corporate Family Concert  derivatives (S) Total  of shareholding
Name of shareholder owner interest interest party (Note 8) interest  in the Company
R
FIETA(S) {EARDFRAER
RREE/EH BERERA DEER RikEE  —RTBAL (FizE8) BReE BRBALL*
Yim Ting Kwok 4,568,000 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%
BT (Note 5) (Mi¥5)  (Note 4) (Fi5t4) 63,216,000 () 7.00%
Cho Wing Yin - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 63,216,000 139,872,000 () 15.49%
Bk (Note 4) ([ 4) (Note 5) (fii5) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Ng Kwok Fu Alex - 135,304,000 - 4,568,000 63,216,000 139,872,000 (L) 15.49%
RE=E (Note 4) (PiE4) (Note 5) (Fi5) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Suen Mi Lai Betty - 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
BB (Note 4) (Bi5E4) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Yim Edwin Pui Hin - 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 () 14.99%
BmE (Note 4) (FfsE4) 63,216,000 () 7.00%
Lock Hiu Yan Crystal - - 135,304,000 - 63,216,000 135,304,000 () 14.99%
SRR (Note 6) (Fi{5£6) (Note 6) (Fi5+6) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett - - 135,624,000 - 63,216,000 135,624,000 (L) 15.02%
RIndE (Note 7)(Pi5E7) (Note 7) (Fi13E7) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Chu Lai King - 135,304,000 - - 63,216,000 135,304,000 (L) 14.99%
FER (Note 4) (£ 4) 63,216,000 (S) 7.00%
Yada International (HK) Limited 85,536,000 - - - - 85,536,000 (1) 9.47%

REERER (FE)ARAR
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Notes:

The letter “L” represents the substantial shareholder’s long position in the shares
of the Company, whereas letter “S” represents the substantial shareholder’s short
position in the equity derivatives of the Company.

The above interests of Smartbase Investments Limited and Starcorp Limited were
also disclosed as the interests of Mr. Tang Yiu Sing in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

Century Fortress Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited are corporations
wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Tang Shing-bor. Accordingly, Mr. Tang
Shing-bor was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Century Fortress
Limited and Great Canton Investments Limited.

These shares are held by Pine Active Care, which is owned as to 90% by
Silverage Pine Care and 10% by Silverage Pillar. Silverage Pine Care is in turn
owned as to an aggregate of 74.25% by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin
(spouse of Mr. Yim Ting Kwok), Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty
(spouse of Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex), Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin
(senior management of the Company) and Ms. Chu Lai King (senior management
of the Company); whereas Silverage Pillar is in turn owned as to an aggregate of
93.58% by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok and Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex. Therefore, Silverage
Pine Care, Silverage Pillar, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Ms. Cho Wing Yin, Mr. Ng Kwok
Fu Alex, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin and Ms. Chu Lai King are
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Pine Active Care
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin entered into the
Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking on 7 September 2016, pursuant
to which they would vote as a group (by themselves and/or through companies
controlled by them) at the shareholder and/or board levels. Accordingly, Mr. Ng
Kwok Fu Alex and Ms. Cho Wing Yin are deemed to be interested in these shares
held by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, based on the said acting-in-concert relationship
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Lock Hiu Yan Crystal is deemed to be interested in these shares/equity
derivatives of the Company through the interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui
Hin.

Ms. Cheung Sui Wa Scarlett is deemed to be interested in these shares/equity
derivatives of the Company through the interest of her spouse, Mr. Yim Billy Pui
Kei. The relevant interest of Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei was also disclosed in the above
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

Pine Active Care and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing entered into a call option deed, pursuant
to which Pine Active Care has granted to Mr. Tang Yiu Sing the call options right
to require Pine Active Care to transfer to him up to 63,216,000 shares. Based on
the relations set out in note 4 above, these substantial shareholders were deemed
to have the short position which Pine Active Care has pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares/equity derivatives
involved divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March
2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other than the
directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. These related party transactions constitute de minimis continuing
connected transactions of the Company that are exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

World Pine Elderly Care Services Limited (“World Pine”), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, is owned as to 50% by each of Pine Care
China Limited (a company incorporated in Hong Kong and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Pine Active Care Limited, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company) and an independent third party (the “JV
Partner”).

The board of directors of World Pine comprises four directors. Each of Pine
Care China Limited and the JV Partner has the right to nominate two directors.
The chairman of the board of directors of World Pine shall be jointly nominated
by Pine Care China Limited and the JV Partner. Currently, the directors of
World Pine include Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei and Mr. Chan Yip Keung (being
directors of the Company).

The scope of business of World Pine as allowed under its business licence
covers investment consulting service, elderly care consulting service,
organisation of cultural programmes and activities for the elderly, health
consulting service (excluding medical practice), leasing, wholesaling, import
and export of household appliances, computers, electrical appliances,
household sundries and related business (excluding financial leasing,
commodities subject to quota and licensing regulated by the relevant national
regulations), and computer software development. World Pine was established
for the purposes of exploration of opportunities in the elderly care business in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Shanghai in the PRC.
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Since the date of establishment of World Pine and up to the date of this
report, World Pine had not commenced any business operations. As disclosed
in the 2018 annual report of the Company, to streamline the Group’s
development of elderly care home business in the PRC, Pine Active Care
Limited, the Company’s controlling shareholder, has resolved the
deregistration of World Pine in the PRC. As at 31 March 2020, the
deregistration process of World Pine has been completed.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, no director was
interested in any business apart from the Group’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Non-competition
Undertakings”) dated 26 January 2017 (the “Deed”), each of the Company’s
former controlling shareholders (i.e. Pine Active Care Limited, Silverage Pine
Care Limited, Silverage Pillar Limited, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu
Alex, Ms. Cho Wing Yin, Ms. Suen Mi Lai Betty, Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei, Mr. Yim
Edwin Pui Hin and Ms. Chu Lai King) and their respective associates have
undertaken to and covenanted with the Company that, each of them would
not, and would procure none of their associates to engage in any business
that is or is likely to be in competition with that of the Group. For details of the
Deed, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” in the Prospectus. If the controlling shareholders become aware
of any business opportunities, they will notify the Company of such
opportunities and will procure that such business opportunities are first offered
to the Group upon terms which are fair and reasonable.

Each of the above-mentioned controlling shareholders, and their respective
associates have confirmed to the Company of their compliance with the Non-
competition Undertakings provided to the Company.

During the FY2020, the former controlling shareholders did not take up and
did not offer or make available to the Company any opportunity to invest,
participate, be engaged in and/or operate with a third party any Restricted
Business (as defined in the Deed) and declared that they had complied with
the requirements on the Non-competition Undertakings as set out in the Deed.
The Non-Competition Undertaking lapsed when the former controlling
shareholders ceased to exercise or control of 30% of the voting power at
general meeting of the Company since 11 February 2020.
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At a meeting of the Audit Committee held on 26 June 2020, all the
independent non-executive directors reviewed the confirmations from the
former controlling shareholders in respect of the Non-competition
Undertakings which were submitted to the Company on 26 June 2020 and
confirmed compliance with the Non-competition Undertakings by the
controlling shareholders.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 28 October 2019, Pine Care Elderly Home Development Limited (“Pine
Care EHD”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and certain
subsidiaries of the Company as borrowers entered into a facilities agreement
(the “Facilities Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender, pursuant
to which certain loan facilities, comprising a term loan in an aggregate amount
of HK$350,000,000 have been granted to Pine Care EHD (in which
approximately 97.2% and 2.8% of the loan amount will be matured on 28
January and 28 February 2025, respectively).

Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, among other things, a specific
performance covenant is imposed on Mr. Yim Ting Kwok to maintain as the
largest single shareholder of the Group as well as maintain control over the
management and business of the Group. Failure to comply with the aforesaid
covenant by Mr. Yim Ting Kwok will constitute an event of default under this
Facilities Agreement, and the lender shall have the right to declare the term
loan has become immediately due and payable, and any undrawn balance of
the term loan shall automatically be cancelled and no longer be available to
Pine Care EHD to be cancelled and/or all or part of outstanding amounts
under this term loan, together with accrued interest and all other sums payable
to be immediately due and payable.

As set out in the above paragraph “Change of Controlling Shareholder and
Sufficiency of Public Float” and in Note 2.1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Mr. Yim Ting Kwok ceased to be the controlling shareholder of
the Company with effect from 11 February 2020, and resigned as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive director of the Company with effect
from 23 March 2020. This resulted in an event of default of the aforesaid
performance covenant under the Facilities Agreement, and the term loan has
become repayable on demand and has been classified as a current liability as
at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, the Group, as at 31 March 2020, had net
current liabilities of HK$409,450,000 which indicated the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

As such, the Group has been in discussions with the lender for waiver of the
said covenant.
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Subsequent to the year end, in June 2020, such covenant was removed and
replaced by a new covenant that Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, the existing controlling
shareholder, shall maintain as the largest single shareholder of the Group and
control over the Group’s management and business pursuant to a revised
banking facility letter issued by the lender.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the financial statements were prepared on the
assumption that the Group will be able to operate as a going concern and the
directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations in the next twelve months from 31 March 2020, after
taking into consideration several measures and arrangements as detailed in
Note 2.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company and its associated
companies is currently in force and was in force throughout the year under
review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (consisting of the two independent non-executive
directors and a non-executive director) has reviewed with management the
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the 2020 AGM. A resolution will be
submitted to the 2020 AGM to seek shareholders’ approval on the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pine Care Group Limited
Tang Yiu Sing

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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e
EY::

To the shareholders of Pine Care Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pine Care Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 106 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the financial statements which indicates that
as at 31 March 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of HK$409,450,000.
This condition, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going
concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

FREECENERTRERE

MBI MERN T2 - HHRERN 202043 A
31H - EE£BEMARSAEEFEEAEL09450,0005
TL o BN RME 2 FTE O Bt BB RTEE
ATHETHEEZ  AJaeY BREEBELCENENE
FREARERM - AN E R WAL FEEDE
HIE

BERERER
MREZZARRBAZBMNEXAE - R5Y
AHFEGEVBRRNBRRAEENER - %%
EZERAZEMBRERGEAMBRAIEARR
paif - MAZEEI T LI FRERHBINER -
BB BB SR EXTHRE A E —Se =18
Sh - ARZEENME BT T XA FE R AR AR
ENEBHRREREE -

AZBENE BT AR E BB F RS BHRE
FRENEF—BOANET  BREEZSEERR
WEE - Bt AREENEZ TERENTRIE
B M BWMREAHRRA R R RETHOF
ZIEFF - BREFNERBBRENATEEARNT

MiZFT - REEMGA VB RANERE LIRHER -

| T B 2 AR AR A |

2020 £ ]

29 b



100 | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

33 7 A% B 8 (A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continueq)

Key audit matter

HRELER

FAHEEZEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRBANERNIEERARERER

Goodwill impairment testing
&R E A

As at 31 March 2020, the Group carried goodwill of
HK$33,833,000 in the consolidated statement of financial position,
which arose from the acquisition of controlling interests in
companies principally engaged in the provision of elderly home
care services.
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Management is required to perform a goodwill impairment test at
least on an annual basis. The impairment test involves complex
and subjective management judgements, a high degree of
management estimation and the use of assumptions to determine
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
is allocated, including estimates about the future cash flows.
Management is also required to determine suitable discount rates
in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows.
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Related disclosures are included in notes 4 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HERBEIAGRE P B MEMTE4 520

Our audit procedures included evaluating the key assumptions
used to forecast future cash flows and the discount rates applied.
We evaluated the sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in
the growth rates and the discount rates to the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units. We involved our internal
specialists in the evaluation of the methodology and key
assumptions adopted. We also assessed the disclosures on the
impairment test, specifically the key assumptions that had the
most significant effect on the determination of the recoverable
amount of the goodwill, such as the discount rates and the
growth rates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

RREREE

R EIZSIE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERZEMHNERNAREERRERSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

W¥ - BB RRERBETE

Included in the property, plant and equipment of the Group as at
31 March 2020 are certain right-of-use assets and owned assets
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$58,705,000 relating to
an elderly home care service cash-generating unit which has been
operating at a loss. As there is an indication that these assets may
be impaired, management is required to perform an impairment
assessment on these assets. The impairment assessment involves
complex and subjective management judgements, a high degree
of management estimation and the use of assumptions to
determine the value in use of the cash-generating unit, including
estimates about the future cash flows. Management is also
required to determine a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of the cash flows.
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Related disclosures are included in notes 4 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HEREINAGA P IERERMEE4 14 -

Our audit procedures included evaluating the Group’s policies
and procedures in identifying impairment indicators and the key
assumptions used to forecast future cash flows and the discount
rate applied. We evaluated the sensitivity of a reasonably possible
change in the growth rate and the discount rate to the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit. We also assessed the
disclosures on the impairment assessment, specifically the key
assumptions that had the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit, such as the discount rate and the growth rate.
REZEMETHNEZEF - BTG SRERTREREREN
B RARFF - AR ARTERIARRIR SR 2 MALR KRR
BTG TReEEEMNA KL S EEIEREMALHR XL
SRR BRI - NRBAN R R EF KB B RET
R FRIREREReELABMAINbDSEYEREANTE
R - AR EFIERE o

| R EEEEAE R AF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

33 7 A% B 8 (A

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BAFH 2 HMER

ERRESAHEMENAE - Kt ENBEFR
WS ER - ETEHEGEE M B IRE R
BN A a2 BED RS o

AZBEERABHRANBERL NVREEMER
LB TR 25 B A BB BRI A A%

A
“Eam o

ARAZBE S A P BWMERNEZ - ARBEHNE
ETABEAMER - FUBRES  ZEE A E HE
RA M BMRRARBENERZBIZP AAENIE
RAREFEERTHFRUTFAEERERRM - &
RAZEENE MITH T MARBERAEME
BEEERBERRL  ARBMEEREZEE -
AIZ BB B LI A BIRAR S -

EERGEMBRRARENER

ERAEFAABERBEBEESIMOGRANEE
MBMELEARBFBRARGINBREREREEE
MAFEEMBERE  THEERA/REREY
BRERNOBHEIFEARAFRERMGHNEKR
R PAFENAEHIEE

EREGAMBEHRERE - EQREZRARNG &
SEFBEENGE N WHEBRER T HE RS
REBMNER  URERSELERSRTER
BIE BERREFAER BEREERI|ELEL
SRl EEMERABERTER -

EREZBEemY BERAREZETEE ES£EH
BHmEBENEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

33 7 A% B e 8 (%)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

BB B S M B RE
Bt

AEBEN B EDHE AN BRREREETGE
R R AF S 4R SR T B A B AR IS A& B4R
B DHEABEAKBEELORBERE - AR
HER BTUERRE) EE - B2 RBRES
R E ) o ARMETT & SRR S AT RER
R AL E EREBEAMAL -

WS

IRER

ERREFRABKFORE  ETRRBLRBELER
BEAPETHN B AR BN B AR - $55R
BROR AT A d BREF e sa sk Sl - IR S IEFAHI L 55
HELRRAEFEERUBRREAERBEES
IR PR M EEORTE - BB RE RS SRR )
WRIEEKX

ERREBEEEREEALETNEZZEPED A
ZBEMEREEHE  REFXEREE - ARH
A 7T -

. Bl K 5 A P BREE S8 RR T 28 BUR & B 7%

BERFEERERBEOREE - Rt RAT
EVREFUNEREZSAR  URERREER

HEENERERE  FALZBEERAER -
MRRFATR S RER BE EBER-
EREL - OB AEES 2 £ BibR
BEBREMAF M G BHRE RHERR AR
e R RAERNEBHREAER
PR L o

. B AR SRR MR AR  ARFTE B

BATEBEENEZEF  BENLEY &
SEABEHNELEERLRER -

. AHAEERMRA S RENEE EAREY
EEHEFT AR RENA R -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
3 3 A% B e (4)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
— 104 | |

BB BRA S M ERRBREDN
el D)

. HEFRABECL A ERNE S HED
o WIRBEMMERNELERRE  BETE
FHEEERENBERBBOERNTHEM - #
MAlge Y ASEENRKELEENEL
ERRE - MARBMABRFEERTEE
o REUEERESMRETREEAET
EEAMBHRERTHOERNE - REAHED
BETR  BETAZEBMOER - A
Ehey i D ENE Z 2B IS B ILFEUS
HEZRE - A RRFBEKIERATEE
B EEETEELEES -

. AR A MBHRRNOBEIIBIN  BER
N (BREEER)  AREAPBHRRE
BRATRIRBBRZSRERE -

. O BEREANERKERTHNMGERE
RATHEENBZERR  NEHEAMBR
RERER - AREMAE BEEEEZD
TR BEERT . AR AEZE R A
EREEE -

FEEBMEEREEGER (KT E2E) BN
BELKHARBAERERE  SENRHUME
ERPERE AR ENEATNRZE

AZEE T MEZEZEGIRIEH - KRB AREED
ENAFHBIUENERERERE R YRES
BREURAERAREYEAREAELIENTE
R R EMERAREBEANER T EREOHEE
B

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
3 37 A% B (4)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF KBS B GRS M BHREREREN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =Kot )

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine that ~ #HEIRZEE @ E MM EBIET - ARSI ETEZE
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial ¥ AHIRI 4 A B HRENBIX BREEHNSIE
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit matters. We — MK AR EZZIE o NZ AN Z SRR E S
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation BZZEE BRIEEEXBEHNIATARREZXS
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare  FEIF - s{EBRBE B ASR T - & 8 H 5 R A%
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in {8l > R4 R TR R BIEERA B EE BB BEL
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 9 A Bz » BIZANAZ EET R E T E £ 3R 45 R 3T A %
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. =I1F o

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s HEB T BRI ENEZIBEEABA ST EE -
report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young XTI ER AT
Certified Public Accountants HESEAD

22/F, CITIC Tower EEFIR

1 Tim Mei Avenue NS5
Central, Hong Kong PERE221E

26 June 2020 2020% 6 A26H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

fon oy R 22 %

Year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020%3H31HIFFZE

REVENUE

Other income and gains
Amortisation

Depreciation

Staff costs

Property rental and related expenses
Food and beverage costs
Utility expenses

Supplies and consumables
Repair and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Share of loss of a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expenses

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I

106 | ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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8 TR

VxRS REBFRX
REERAKA
INZEE S5

e OB R
BERRE

HAE SRS
BTSN

Sl —fEECEEE

BRBL AR A

FrstiR

FERA

W e -

SRAEAA
FHR R

FRREBEBFEA
EiEESRER

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B &k FTHET FAT
6 217,363 186,782
6 476 489
(3,093) (3,093)
(33,689) (11,964)
(99,524) (89,783)
(6,620) (20,321)
(8,471) (8,530)
(7,095) (6,945)
(6,724) (5,709)
(2,732) (1,852)
(27,682) (21,5627)
8 (4,764) (2,397)
(323) -
7 17,122 15,150
11 (3,546) (1,690)
13,576 13,460
13,584 18,435
(8) 25
13,576 18,460

13

HK1.5 cents &1l

HK1.5 cents 71




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i A g R

Year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z2020F3H31H |- F/E

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEBRR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hi2mEmk A (EiE)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be &R HE R EH D EZERN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  Efh 2 EW A/ (EE) :

Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefit BAEMNET BB (F8)
obligation

Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified #A E % iR & S E R85

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEfb2mEEIE -
Exchange differences on translation of REEINETSEE RO IE R

foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEEHM2EKA(FHE)
FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FE2HEHKAEE
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to: AT & T e
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ PN
Non-controlling interests IR =

2020 £ ]

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET

13,576 13,460

841 (604)

(763) (686)
78 (1,290)

13,654 12,170

14,129 12,145

(475) 25

13,654 12,170

A N T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B IR D 2R

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Goodwill

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from a joint venture

Trade receivables

Tax recoverable

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I

FRBEE

M - BB M&E
Taf LA E R
BVEE
R—EEEENKRE
FENFOR - At EKIRE R
HuEE

kS
BASERARREDN
EREE
BEHIBEE

FERBEELRE

RBEE

FEU —FR & &R ERIA

B Z MR

QIEETE R
TBNRIR - EtREERIA R
HihEE
ReRkALEEY

mMBEERE

RBRE

B S EN TR

HAb FE R R e FT B A
FHRIRITER

REBAERE

HEERRBAME

Notes

B

14
15
16
17

19
20

21
27

17
18

19
22

23
24
25
15

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
819,278 331,420
- 376,747
6,185 9,278
21,403 21,726
6,808 6,554
33,833 33,833
3,143 3,083
6,200 5,265
896,850 787,906
8,921 103
5,521 2,051
1,389 -
2,930 3,607
27,767 50,879
46,528 56,840
2,029 1,092
18,977 13,892
408,574 56,396
20,877 -
5,521 3,781
455,978 76,061
(409,450) (19,221)
487,400 768,685
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

B B IR D 2 (4)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Provision for long service payments
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Tang Yiu Sing
BigS

Director

EBEF

FRBEE

HoAth FE A 5008 S FE 7T B
FHRIRITER
HERE
RHRF I TR
EEHARAR

FERBEELEE

BEFE

R

RATESEFEA
e

BT

i

FRIE R iR

ettt

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MIsE THET FHET
24 = 5,059
25 190,677 537,120
15 70,817 -
26 5,044 4,441
27 14,211 14,984
280,749 561,604

206,651 207,081

28 9,029 9,029
30 191,224 191,179
200,253 200,208

6,398 6,873

206,651 207,081

Chan Yip Keung
G

Director

EF

I%%%%%@ﬁmﬁﬂllm
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
f 17 B A 5 ) 3R

Year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020%3H31HIFFZE

At1 April 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss
for the year:

Actuarial losses on
retirement benefit
obligation

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year

Interim dividend

Final dividend

Capital injection from
anon-controling
shareholder

At 31 March 2019

Note
i

R2018%54 18

ERER
ERERZEBE:

RVERIEEZ
REER

HERINEBELH
EiEE

FR2ENN/
(BiR)ag

PHRE 12

RERE 12
—ZHERRREE

R201963A31A

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 !

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEAELE
Share-
Share based Exchange Non-
lssued  premium Merger  payment Other  fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
DA
BE i3 RERNR EX%E R
R HER  AKREE Ml Hks BE  REEH 5t BE  BERER
HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR T
(Note 28) (Note 30)
(B3t 28) (F3¥30)
9029 148770 33,798 1,691 504 496 8943 203,231 4888 208,119
- - - - - - 13,435 13,435 25 13,460
- - - - (604) - - (604) - (604)
- - - - - (686) - (686) - (686)
- - - - (604) (686) 13,435 12,145 25 12,170
- - - - - - (7,584) (7,584) - (7,584)
- - - - - - (7,584) (7,584) - (7,584)
- - - - - - - - 1,960 1,960
9029 148,770° 33,798 1,691 (1001 (190 72100 200,208 6873 207,081




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(CONTINUED)
f 7 B A 5 B % (4)

Year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z2020F3H31H |- F/E

At1 April 2019

Profit/{loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/
(loss} for the year:
Actuarial gains on retirement
benefit obligation
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Interim dividend
Final dividend

At 31 March 2020

*

31 March 2020.

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREAAEL
Share-
Share based Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Merger  payment Other fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
R
B&fT K RERAR ExRg 2R
Bx  BEE AORE  KREE  HtRG W REEA 5t BE REAR
Note ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
itz T TEn TR TR TER TER TER TET TET TET
(Note 28) (Note 30)
(& 28) (R¥z30)
H2019%4 A 18 9,029 148,770 33,798 1,691 (100) (190) 7210 200,208 6,873 207,081
ERedl/(88) - - - - - - 13584 13584 (8) 13576
FEEM2ERA/
(&) -
RABHERLL
REhE - - - - 841 - - 841 - 841
BERNEREL
MERER
- - - - - (296) - (296) (467) (763)
Eg2ERA/
(E8) 28 - - - - 841 (296) 13584 14,129 (475) 13,654
PERS 12 - - - - - - 042 (7,042 - (7,042
RERE 12 - - - - - - 042 (7,042 - (7,042
202043 A 318 9029 148,770  33,798* 1,691* T41* (486  6,710* 200,253 6,398 206,651

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$191,224,000 *
(2019: HK$191,179,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at

ZIRE R -

| g L

A B2 )
2020 F #

ZERBERBEN 202043 A 31 BEGARBRR
F$1191,224,00075 7T (2019 4F : 191,179,00078 7T)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i Bl i R

Year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020%3H31HIFFZE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi s FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES S #5E5BIF8 R &R R
Profit before tax B&FR B A T 17,122 15,150
Adjustments for: B THSIEEL T
Finance costs IR IDN 8 4,764 2,397
Interest income F B A 7 (1) ©)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MELRETE 7 8,449 11,964
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 7 25,240 -
Amortisation 3 7 3,093 3,093
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value BRAREFABEN S
through profit or loss BEMNAAERES 7 (60) (100)
Provision for long service payments, net REABRFG N sR BB F 58 26 1,444 216
Share of loss of a joint venture DE—EAETERE 323 -
60,374 32,711
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e IE S A (3,270) (1,384)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables FERFOE - R EIE
and other assets R EH A& ER A 423 2,041
Increase in trade payables B Z RN FRIEE N 37 447
Increase in other payables and accruals EbfEM B R ERTE R
840 5,221 419
Cash generated from operations KEMRFERS 62,785 34,234
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBFNFH (4,903) (1,520)
Interest received B HFILE 1 9
Interest paid BEFE (19,322) (14,178)
Net cash flows from operating activities wERHMEReREFHE 38,561 18,545
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEFFESHEESRE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BELEEER
plant and equipment (22,932) (63,317)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui B — FE1 B B R B 31 = (13,305)
(Increase)/decrease in an amount due B —H& & hERE
from a joint venture (gm),wmo (8,818) 332
Investment in a joint venture R—EAETEMNRE = (21,726)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEBMARS
MEFEE (31,750) (88,016)

112 | PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)
maBlaeni gk ()

Year ended 31 March 2020 #,Z2020F3H31H |- F/E

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid

Capital injection from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

BMEFHRERSRE
HIRITER

EERITER

[EARLEE)

—FI B AR — B IR
RFEE
HENRAZE S

MEED (FTA),Fiis
AL mEFH

RERRSEEWRD FH

FNRERASZEY
kS e

FRRERREEEY

RERBESENERIN

Re RIRTTHER

2020 £ ]

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$000
THET FHET
64,000 80,620
(58,265) (18,708)
(14,084) (15,168)
= 1,960
(21,674) -
(30,023) 48,704
(23,212) (20,767)
50,879 71,778
100 (132)
27,767 50,879
27,767 50,879
I%%%%%@ﬁ@ﬁﬂllw



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 25 e 2 Wi

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Pine Care Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is G/F, 1 Koon Wah Lane, 68-72 Yuk Wah Street, Tsz
Wan Shan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of elderly home care services.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 February
2017.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Mr.
Tang Yiu Sing is considered as the controlling shareholder of the

Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NAREEER
MEEEERBRAT(ARAF]D) A —ER
HE2RSTMRIIHNBRARF - RRAHT
i # = B #b 4t A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands ° Z&NA G E B & FE i
HRBENEARE LSELE8-T25R EEE 1
SR o

ARAR/IREZER AR FA - ARFRE
MEBAR(GE [ AEE]) TERERHELE
B IR

KABRMIR2017FE2 A1I5HETBBHAR
SEER AR ([BAT]) EiR LT -

ARBEZ(EZDREA  BRATERR
RARRAMERAIR -

HEEKB A RWEFR
ARTEEMBATGEENT :

Place of Issued Percentage of equity
incorporation/ ordinary attributable to
Company name business share capital the Company Principal activities
3 b
NCIE:E MR ERTEERE BlEEREI T FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Gk
Pine Care Health Initiative Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
(the “BVI")
RERLRES 17T REERR
((RBRZHS])
Prime Health Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$98,418,468 - 100 Investment holding
BRERAR QA N 98,418,468 /& 7T REER
Pine Care Elderly Home Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Development Limited and provision of
management services
MEEEZRERERAT B 40,000,000/ 7T REER LR E R RS
Pacific First Limited Hong Kong HK$1,070 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
KEFERRAF a8 1,07087T R L ZRE RS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEAMBARNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARBIEEMBARMNFBOT  (8)
(Continued)
Place of Issued Percentage of equity
incorporation/ ordinary attributable to
Company name business share capital the Company Principal activities
i AN
NEER =S ERTLZERS EEERED T FTEEH
Direct Indirect
BHE e
Besting Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$120,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
BEEERRAF B 120,000/& 7T RERERE RS
Hinta Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
(“Hinta Enterprises”) care services
BALEERAT(BALE]) B 10,0008 7¢ REZER B
Fitbest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
BRARAE N 500,000/ 7T Rt eEhs RS
Masswell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
BEEERARRF B 10,0008 7T RHEERE RS
Gericare Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100  Provision of elderly home
(“Gericare Centre”) care services
RiZEZPLBRAR BB 1008 7T RERERE RS
(MREEZHLD
Fitgarden Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Property investment
BEEBRAR B8 2,500,0007% 7T MERE
Mainfield Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Property investment
ERR QA BB 28T MERE
Chun Fai Development Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100  Property investment
BEERERAT 58 100,000 7T MERE
Grant Smart Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Property investment
BRERARQF B8 10,000 7T MERE
Wellfield Properties Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Property investment
Limited
HRMEZERER DA B 10,000 %7T MERE

l T B 2 AR AR A
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EREAMBARMNESR (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AREEEMBARKGEBENOT : (&)
(Continued)
Place of Issued Percentage of equity
incorporation/ ordinary attributable to
Company name business share capital the Company Principal activities
a1y AT
DNEER EE 3 ERTEAERK BEERED T FTEEH
Direct Indirect
BHE e
Ruby International Investment Hong Kong HK$5 - 100  Property investment
Limited (“Ruby International”)
AERBBRBRERR AR B 58T MERE
(Mg RaEE])
Manchester Rehabilitation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of rehabilitation
Services Limited and physiotherapy
services
ERITSERRBER AR & 18T REER R IR R
Witmart Design & Construction Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Provision of repair and
Co. Limited maintenance services
SR REIRERERAA B 28T REEE RRERS
Fully Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Property investment
mRER A B 10,0007 7T MERE
Pine Care Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
MR EEER QR B 10,0008 7T Rt Eh = RS
Pine Care Elegance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Investment holding
B TEERR DA B 10,0007 7T REER
Grand Prosper Holdings BVI US$3 - 100  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited*
RERLES 3% REZER
One Affinity Limited* BVI Us$1 - 100  Investment holding
RERLRES 17T REER
Lorient Holdings Ltd.* BVI US$H1 - 100  Property investment
EEELHS 1E7T MERE




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

*

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEAMBARNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARBIEEMBARMNFBOT  (8)
(Continued)
Place of Issued Percentage of equity
incorporation/ ordinary attributable to
Company name business share capital the Company Principal activities
A AN
YNGR E 3k ERTEERS EEERED T TEEY
Direct Indirect
HE e 4
Tsuen Wan Elderly Care Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Provision of elderly home
Services Limited* care services
REEERBAER AR BB 10,0008 7T RHEERE RS
Pine Care Point Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100  Provision of elderly home
care services
RERHEF AR DA e 10078 7T RERER SRS
Pine Care Yada Elderly Services Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 - 51 Investment holding
Limited
M IEEEEZRBEAR QA B 14,000,000 % 7T REER
Zhejiang Pine Care Yada Elderly the People’s HK$12,000,000 - 51 Provision of elderly home
Services Limited* Republic of China care services
(the “PRC")/
Mainland China
IR EETERBAERRF HEARKENE 12,000,000 7T REERE RS
(el
B R RE
Giant Success International Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings Limited
(“Giant Success”)*
REEBREEERAR(RED B 1,000/ 7T 100 MEKE

* REEBLRKEAMEBARLKERBE

Ernst & Young global network

HiK B ARIEX
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the PRI EERAHFNEEESLEAZE
RENAEBEEFEEZHEKRBONNE
NEl - BERE GlHEMMEBATHSE
HRHEMHERHARILE

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 21 Z25E
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$409,450,000.

As further detailed in the Company’s joint announcement dated 11
February 2020, the controlling shareholder of the Company has been
changed to Mr. Tang Yiu Sing since 11 February 2020. Also, as further
detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 March 2020, Mr.
Yim Ting Kwok resigned as an executive director and the chairman of
the board of directors of the Company, and Mr. Tang Yiu Sing was
appointed as an executive director and the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company with effect from 23 March 2020. As a result
of the foregoing, as at 31 March 2020, the Group failed to comply with
the covenant and undertaking concerning the controlling shareholder of
the Company and the control over the management and business of
the Group (“First Covenant”) in respect of a term loan with a carrying
amount of HK$346,500,000 (secured by a property of the Group). As
such, the aforesaid term loan has become repayable on demand and
has been classified as a current liability as at 31 March 2020. The
lending bank has not demanded early repayment of the term loan up to
the date of approval of these financial statements.

After the close of the mandatory general offer made by Mr. Tang Yiu
Sing, the Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for the
suspension of trading in the shares of the Company with effect from 23
March 2020 and trading in the shares in the Company remained
suspended up to the date of these financial statements due to
insufficient public float. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
in April 2020, the Group failed to comply with another covenant and
undertaking for the aforesaid term loan concerning the suspension of
trading in the shares of the Company for no more than 14 consecutive
trading days (“Second Covenant”).

The Group has been in discussions with the lending bank of the
aforesaid term loan for the waiver of the First Covenant and the Second
Covenant. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in June 2020,
the First Covenant was removed and replaced by a new covenant that
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing shall maintain as the largest single shareholder of the
Group and control over the Group’s management and business
pursuant to a revised banking facility letter issued by the lending bank
and the Second Covenant was waived by the lending bank for a period
up to 30 August 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued) 21 E2HEE@w

As further detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 June
2020, the board of directors of the Company was informed by Mr. Tang
Yiu Sing that he has been in ongoing discussions with his proposed
placing agent and various potential placees in relation to possible
placement or disposal of his shareholding in the Company for the
purpose of restoring the minimum public float of the Company.
However, given the volatility in capital markets caused by the outbreak
of COVID-19 since the first quarter of 2020 and the black out period of
the Company during which the Company’s directors are prohibited
from dealing in any securities of the Company (the “Black Out
Restriction”) and which commenced on 27 April 2020 up to and until
the date of publication of the annual results announcement of the
Company being 26 June 2020, no definitive agreements have been
entered into by Mr. Tang Yiu Sing as at the date of approval of these
financial statements.

The board of directors of the Company was further informed by Mr.
Tang Yiu Sing that he will continue to take appropriate steps for the
possible placement of new shares and/or existing shares to
independent third parties not connected with the Company or any of its
core connected persons and parties not acting in concert with him in
order to restore the minimum required public float as soon as possible
after the end of the Black Out Restriction.

The financial statements were prepared based on the assumption that
the Group can be operated as a going concern and the Directors are of
the view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations in the next twelve months from 31 March 2020, after taking
into consideration the following:

(i) the available unutilised credit facilities of the Group;

(i) the shares in the Company could resume trading on the Stock
Exchange after restoring the minimum required public float within
the waiver period granted and after which the aforesaid term loan
of HK$346,500,000 would become repayable within twelve
months as to HK$10,500,000 and beyond twelve months as to
the remaining outstanding balance; and

(i) the estimated cash flows of the Group for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

2.1

2.2

—1 120 |

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Should the trading in the shares in the Company not be resumed as
planned and an additional waiver not be granted by the lending bank
and alternative credit facilities be unavailable to the Group, the Group
may be unable to continue as a going concern, in which case
adjustments would have to be made to adjust the values of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have

not been reflected in the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.2 REEE®)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

and Joint Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to

the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the

impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

— 122 |
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HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
pbalance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1 April
2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 April 2019, and the comparative information for 2019
was not restated and continued to be reported under HKAS 17
and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to
be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only
to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

— 124 |
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(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for properties. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all leases, except for an elective exemption
for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of
recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1 April 2019, the
Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019. All these
assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on
that date. The Group elected to include the right-of-use assets in
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients

when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a o
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of

initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the °
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 April

2019 are as follows:

Assets
Increase in property, plant and equipment
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments

Increase in total assets
Liabilities
Decrease in other payables and accruals

Increase in lease liabilities

Increase in total liabilities

The adoption of HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on retained

profits as at 1 April 2019.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
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(Continued)
The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate
as 1 April 2019 Fj=
Discounted operating lease commitments
as at 1 April 2019
Less: Short-term leases
Add: Adjustment as a result of different treatment
of a termination option

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of
HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture
to which the equity method is applied and does not include long-
term interests that in substance form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture, to which the equity method has
not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather
than HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is
then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture. The Group assessed its business
model for its long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
upon adoption of the amendments on 1 April 2019 and
concluded that the long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures continued to be measured at amortised cost in
accordance with HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

©

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The interpretation did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Definition of a Business'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for early
adoption

©
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
April 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions
or other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available

for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material of
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statement. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The amendment to HKFRS 16 provides relief to lessees by applying
HKFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. Many lessors have provided rent concessions to lessees as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The objective of the amendment is
to provide lessees that have been granted Covid-19 related rent
concessions with practical relief, while still providing useful information
about leases to users of the financial statements. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s

investments in joint ventures.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation

disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

@iy the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same
third party;

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. SITBRBE )
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B (&)
(o)  (Continued) () (&)
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —ERA—RF=ZSTEBNEE
entity is an associate of the third entity; NE ME—EBAZE=FE
AR E QA
(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v)

of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi)  a person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which

it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the Bz 32

expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (%8)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease term
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease term
and 10%-20%
Furniture, fixtures and 14%-30%
other equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and renovation under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of five years.

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms of the assets as follows:

Land
Buildings

Over the lease terms
Over the lease terms
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

®)
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Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group’s right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment. If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of land and buildings (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

3.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
— 140 |

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

(@)

(®)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,

removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLS”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and

forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and other monetary
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

(@)

®)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

3.

SETBORBIE (@)

/\\ ﬁEwu%l"ﬂE\ﬁ%
ERETHEBRER  BOHSHERE &L
ERZEBARE -

WE-—BRALRBERRAR-EXRIA
RED GG E ZHIM S RS E A BT
R RBEFEENGEFIBEAREES - WEE
BRERFRILERREABYRIBNAE
BEIR - MMERE(EZ Ha RN R iR -

TR T ERIEE

R R B ATORRITHREMNEHO RS
B OLEERFRAEARAREREENE
EaEN  cREERSRAGENTERKR
i WHOFEZHNFBERRERA -

RERBEEEEY
MGERETERME  BekBeSED
BIEFERS  EHGTERUARAERERE
ENsERS BEZHRARITIAEBER
—REETHA=EAREEZUANE NS
TMBRE  RMANERKRFERBIWEXAEE
BeBEE—HOMIBTESX

MEAMBHARERMS  ReRASFEY
PJ% EARBTZRENFRESERITRS
(BREEHFR LML BESBUNEE) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@) Sale of elderly home related goods
Revenue from the sale of elderly home related goods is
recognised at the point in time when the control of the goods
was transferred to the customers.

(b)  Rendering of elderly home care services and provision of health
care services
Revenue from the rendering of elderly home care services and
provision of health care services is recognised when the services
are rendered over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from another source
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.
transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Provision for long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of the future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. Long service payments are assessed using the projected unit
credit method. Long service payments are discounted to determine the
present value of obligation and reduced by entitlement accrued under
the Group’s defined contribution plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose suitable
growth rates and discount rates in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2020 was HK$33,833,000 (2019: HK$33,833,000). Further details are
given in note 20 to the financial statements.

3.

FESBEREE @)

8=\

THIRRERSEZREIR  FAARNRA AR
BERAMAERANDETESTTIRTHREMN
RER o Bt - R EIRR R 2 R K B R A B RS
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REIR SRR K& LR R AL E R TR AR
afEe

ERGFHHE R A

REAERAPBRRE  BRERELEY
By RAX AEMABNHRSSERE

HERERKIRBERE 2 HE - Bt R
FemSHRBRMEFANTEERNE TS
BYRKRAHIFE 2 BERAEREAEE
HEARFE -

o

BT TRERR
REREAREEARRGH T AN BFE
EERABREEAIFEABEMERRA
B EERRREHTREREZ T E
SR o

AMERE
AEBELBFECHERLTHERE - 1t
BHESREENECEECEMMEREE
{EHhT - BT EAEER  AEBEAM
RERSELBNMBEBRRAKRERE I
EEREAEMNBBRERUAEZSHRSRENE
fH° R2020F3A31H BENEEEA
33,833,000/ 7T (20194 : 33,833,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is an indication that an asset (including the right-of-use assets) may be
impaired. If such an indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of
the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Included in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are certain right-of-use assets and
owned assets with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$58,705,000
(2019: HK$41,891,000) relating to an elderly home care service cash-
generating unit which has been operating at a loss. As there is an
indication that these assets may be impaired, the Group has performed
an impairment assessment and further details are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for accelerated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, and unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets at 31 March 2020 was HK$6,200,000 (2019: HK$5,265,000).

Provision for long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is discounted to determine the present value of
obligation using a projected credit method. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the expected rate of future salary
increases and discount rate adopted in the projected credit method.
The carrying amount of provision for long service payments as at 31
March 2020 was HK$5,044,000 (2019: HK$4,441,000). Further details
are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

4,

EXSFHHE R A @)

ERENHASEXE )

FEREERE (FERM)
REBREREPATIEREEEBRTRNEE
(BEERBEEE) TRELERENTR 4
THEAMBETER  AEBAIeHEENA
U Bl & 58 1E B (5T - B E M AT IR E 2158 2 A
HAnBERHEXRAREFERABERE T
RRBEA% - AHEREER  ~NEEA
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WRBEEOUREUAEZFRSREN
H(E - N2020F3 A31 H » AEBMMYE -
BMEERXEEERAEAETHERELES
58,705,000 7T (20194F : 41,891,0007% 7T )
MERAEEERBELRE  ZSEAEHRTE
ReREREELBEM(CHELLER)A
e AR B RBATNAZSEERTRERE -
RNEECEITRET S - E—FFEBHAEH
BTN 14 -

EERBEE
BRERIBEEDIRME - BE RREOINR
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T (20194 : 5,265,000787T) °
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REEBRBEEBRBFEGROCE THERTHE
LtEAENSHEZ ETFERBENELE
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ERANARGTSERERELAEERNT
ZEREFEHERHE - 7202053 431 H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable

operating segment, which is the provision of elderly home care services.

Since this is the only operating segment of the Group, no further

operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue was derived solely from its operations in Hong

Kong during the year and the non-current assets of the Group were

mainly located in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Information about a major customer
Revenue of HK$100,152,000 (2019: HK$85,770,000) was derived from
the Hong Kong Government under the Enhanced Bought Place

Scheme, which amounted to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers BEF&#M
Rendering of elderly home care services Rt ERE RS
Sale of elderly home related goods HEZERMBEE®D
Provision of health care services RHBERERS

Revenue from contracts with customers

@

— 154 |

Disaggregated revenue information

Timing of revenue recognition:

Goods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

Y s SR RS ]

EmRE—-HHER
PR 75 BiE 5 Fl 45 75

BPARNB R

e ER

RERME  AEEES—ET2REES
B ERERERSRY - Nt AREE
W SRS  HE2IE - SEED B

7 o

[

FA - AEENYEREREERBENLE
il 742020 5 ) 20194 3 A 31 A A &£ [ #) 3F
MEBEETBMNEE °

BEE—RETEEFNER
100,152,003 7T (20194 : 86,770,000 7t.)
B YR E Bt B EE B B ERUN -
IEAREE B 10% -

Wz~ HAWA K REE
REBRZESHTIOT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
182,962 154,574
21,878 20,145
12,523 12,063
217,363 186,782
EEEHRE
i)y DFBEER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
21,878 20,145
195,485 166,637
217,363 186,782
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Rendering of elderly home care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

Sale of elderly home related goods

The performance obligation is satisfied when the Group delivers
the goods to the customers and the control of the goods is
transferred to the customers.

Provision of health care services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered in which the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at
31 March are as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised

as revenue:
Within one year —FER
After one year —F1%

TAES R AR SR

s « AU AR W (o)

BEEEHWE®)

(i)

BHEE
FRAAEEREOEETNERBURIT

e L 2R
BHEERRERBESERBET - &
TRy 52 [0 B W IR R 5 R R 5 [ 22 (1L 1 )
HELESERER
BHOBREEAREERTF RN E MR
BEEMEHIEER TEPRETT

FEH ETIRIZIRE
BHEERRERIGESERMET - B
By 22 P [0 B W B R £58 PR A R [ B2 (1 O )

S o

Bk

M3A3IH  DEEFBKBELHEE(CK
BRRENHAREBELY) NZHERSEN
T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
105,417 100,152
210,835 -
316,252 100,152

2020 F 3R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 6.
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

Provision of health care services (Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as

revenue after one year related to elderly home care services, of

which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within three

years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the

remaining performance obligations are expected to be

recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed

above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.

Other income and gains

Other income
Interest income
Rental income

Gains

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Others

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

— 156 |

Hp A
AEUA
HEUWA

Wz

BAREFARENEBEEN
AR B

Al

Wz ~ AU AR W )

BEEEHWE®)

(i)

BREE(E)

TR EBTIRIZIRTS ()

BN —FREAREE 2D EER
HRENEENZSERSBEERERS
REEH HEHNEEER=FAE
7 PEENBBEHEENMA MR
SERSBRARR —FARRB R
#H o EXAIREZ 2R RREERER

HABWA R Yz
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$000
THET TET
1 9
389 380
390 389
60 100
26 -
86 100
476 489
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation and amortisation
Less: Amount capitalised

Auditor’s remuneration

Staff costs (excluding directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions

Provision for long service payments

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Minimum lease payments under

operating leases of land and buildings

Fair value gain on financial asset

at fair value through profit or loss*
Bank interest income*
Government grants*™#

statement of profit or loss

EERERA

FrEREH
B BENMeRE

2 ER A B

BETIRA(TBREEER

Ixﬂﬁkmﬁw)
TENF
Lﬁéfﬁ L3k

RHRTE N R B

Tt AHE A B ENHEENK

THREFREEE
REHEERK
BARERAERR
NI AN
SRITHS A

B Bh

SR EER

Included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated

> Included in “Staff costs” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss
# Various government grants have been received for the welfare of the

elderly in the Group’s elderly home care centres. There are no unfulfilled

conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

7. BRELRER
A EEBBATEF MBS GEA) AT &

TR ER -

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
st FHET FHET
15,195 14,239
51,915 27,002
(15,133) (12,845)
36,782 15,057
1,390 1,450
104,049 93,628
3,667 3,724
26 1,444 216
109,160 97,568
241 -
- 16,184
(60) (100)
(1) ©)
(11,224) (9,634)

* MAEREIBEE [ HAUA k]

ERAEE T ERE RE RN Z BB
B o BEEA RSB E AW R FIT R
BERE-

|M#*%%lﬁmﬂj
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

8.

— 158 |

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest on bank overdrafts
Interest on lease liabilities

Total interest expense
Less: Interest capitalised

FHRIRITERAE
RITE SN B
HEBENS

SR
o BEARMERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

e

Hib <
e REREYEM
RIREFTBIGER

8.

B B AR
MR ASITOT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
19,322 14,151
= 27
2,650 -
21,972 14,178
(17,208) (11,781)
4,764 2,397
BEENRTETHAEHMH

BIEEmRA - HEQE G5 383(1)@)
) ) EOERAR (FEESMZER) B
BIE2HFEE L FRNEEREBITHRAEFHH

mF -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
481 607
1,074 1,218

33 24

1,107 1,242
1,588 1,849

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EEREFETHAEHM =
REMUNERATION (Continued) e
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) 3‘%1#%{1%% . G
The fees and pension scheme contributions paid to independent im?zﬁ%%i#ﬁﬁ§$m@i&ﬂ
. . ) R FHEMERIT
non-executive directors during the year were as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang BREEEE 84 80
Dr. Wong Ping San John il 80 80
Dr. Liu Yuk Shing BEEKiEL 84 80
Mr. Liu Walter Joseph* QB fEEE - 55
Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony® BrimRnsTAs 2 -
250 295
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRGEEN TELIFRTESOHM
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil). (2019 : &) -

| R EEEEAE R AF
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

— 160 |

Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive

2020

Executive directors:
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok®
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei*
Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin®
Mr. Chan Yip Keung
Mr. Tang Yiu Sing®
Mr. Yeung Ka Wing®
Mr. Cheng Wai Ching®

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex®
Mr. Lam Yat Hon®
Mr. Tang Yiu Pong®
Mr. Wong Kin Chun Gilbert®

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 F

HITEE
BEELEe
B
B s e
FESTY s
WS Sk
BRE S 4
ML TL et

FHTES:
REFELL
MRERE®
WAL
FREELS

9. EERFIETHAEFM @)
b) BITEE  #FHTESKREE
THAE
Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total

e R2ER ERE
e BYEF sHEIER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET
48 - - 48
48 162 2 212
48 - 2 50
- 720 18 738
144 882 22 1,048
48 192 - 240
48 - 2 50
96 192 2 290
240 1,074 24 1,338




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EEBERFIEMTHAEFHM =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and b) BITEE FHTEERTE
the chief executive (Continued) THAE#)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e MR BRE
we BEYER FTHEIftK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T T FHET
2019 20194
Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. Yim Ting Kwok B E Bl SE A 48 - - 48
Ms. Cho Wing Yin* Bkt Lt 36 - 36
Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei* BOmEL 48 162 2 212
Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin BB ET S 48 - 2 50
Mr. Chan Yip Keung PREJSTAE - 720 18 738
180 882 22 1,084
Non-executive directors: EHITES
Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex REIESE 48 192 - 240
Mr. Lam Yat Hon MIRE & 48 - 2 50
Mr. Ma Wing Wah* BoKES LS 36 144 - 180
132 336 2 470
312 1,218 24 1,654

Mr. Yim Billy Pui Kei is also the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Mr. Yim Ting Kwok, Mr. Yim Edwin Pui Hin, Mr. Ng Kwok Fu Alex
and Mr. Lam Yat Hon resigned as directors of the Company with
effect from 23 March 2020.

Mr. Yuen Tak Tim Anthony, Mr. Tang Yiu Sing, Mr. Yeung Ka
Wing, Mr. Cheng Wai Ching, Mr. Tang Yiu Pong and Mr. Wong Kin
Chun Gilbert were appointed as directors of the Company with
effect from 23 March 2020.

Mr. Liu Walter Joseph, Ms. Cho Wing Yin and Mr. Ma Wing Wah
resigned as directors of the Company with effect from 7 December
2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

* BOME LT RAR R R THRAEH, -

@ BEBLLE  BOTE AL REEX
R GRE S - B 202063 A 23 H
EEHEARBESE -

$ PrERkd BRALE BREK
£ B L BRI E R ER
&% £ 820203 A23 A R EZ T
BARREE -

# 2)EEkE  Bukiat REKEL
EBAERATIESE B2018F 124
7HABLER ©

FA UEEFXTBTHRABRELRE
BREE ] 37 BN O 22 B
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year include one director
(2019: one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the non-director,
highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYRET
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIEER

The number of the non-director, highest paid employees whose

10. T EBeHMER
FRAARSTNEERIE—RZESE (2019
F:—ZEE)  HEFEMFEHN LT -
FRIFEENTRSFNEENTHFBN

T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
3,279 2,942
72 54
3,351 2,996

FHEBRTIBEZFEERSFHEEAR

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: o
2020 2019
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or any of the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office nor
has any director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
— 162 | |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

11. INCOME TAX 1. FriSHt
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: EBMNESHERFARBBESE 2 BFTER
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during Fi0m F LA 16.5% (2019 4F : 16.5%) B Fi R 51
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying REE EAEE BB ARBRIN Z2
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the Al BB EIEERN2018/2019:R F1 F & £ 3K
year of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: NSRRI EE  ZMBRAAH
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% 2,000,000 7t (20194 : 2,000,000/ 7T ) HY
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. JERR B G A1 8.25% M TR R R - &2 T FERR

i MBI 16.5% BB 480t -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Current — Hong Kong BNER — &#
Charge for the year FAFREZ 5,214 3,430
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BAFEREBTNR(HBRHEEE) 40 (90)
Deferred (note 27) IERE (B E27) (1,708) (1,650)
Total tax charge for the year FRHIBEFRZ B 3,546 1,690

| R EEEEAE R AF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e. the statutory tax

rate) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised from
previous periods
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous periods
Adjustments in respect of
deferred tax of previous periods
Tax effect of two-tiered
profits tax regime
Tax reduction
Others

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I
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REEB R HOBIA
HARTIA
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JEFRBE R 2 5 e 1R

FAIB 1 HAfE 2 BNAATR IR
{5k

BT ETEN IR
(FEE

NSRRI 2 BRE T2

AR
Hith

BAREERBREES
AR X

1. Fifgi @)
BARNRRERSHMBARNENGAE
EEENAERRTEERRBRRIENN
REMY  HEREERIRAEORERIN
IR REARR(AVATHE) BEEH R
RIS BRSNS T

2020 2019

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

THET FHET

17,122 15,150
2,825 16.5 2,500 16.5
(10) (0.1) (19) (0.1)
1,949 11.4 871 57
(295) (1.7) (209) (1.4)
40 0.2 (90) (0.6)

(458) (2.7) (869) (5.7)

(165) (1.0) (165) (1.1)

(340) 1.9) (320) 2.1)

- - (9) -
3,546 20.7 1,690 11.2




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividends — HKO.78 cent
(2019: HKO0.84 cent) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend — HKO0.68 cent
(2019: HKO0.78 cent) per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend of HKO.68 cent per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 March 2020 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$13,584,000 (2019: HK$13,435,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,880,000 (2019: 902,880,000)
in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these years.

12.

13.

FRHEARR B — AR mAR 0.78 1L
(20194F : 0.8471L)

EEAHRE — SREER0.68/51L
(20194 : 0.7871L)

iz 5.
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
7,042 7,584
6,140 7,042

BREMNEZE2020F3 A31 HIFFERIERE
TR AR 0.68BIIARF AR B RENER
R ERAF ARG FHHE

AREEBRESRFEARGER
2 F

ANEEGREREFNCBENIRART L BE
@A AL F E & 718,584,000 T
(20194 : 13,435,000/ 0) & B 317 L @A
no#E F 5 $0902,880,000 % (2019 £ :
902,880,000 f%) 5+ & °

B 7R 5= B A # £ 2020 FF K% 201943 A 31

PIESETEEHTECIELRR &1
BEA2INNTGRERBFNSEELAE -

l T B 2 AR AR A

2020 £ ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2020

At 1 April 2019:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 31 March 2019, net of
accumulated depreciation

Effect of adaption of
HKFRS 16

At 1 April 2019 (restated)

Adaftions

Depreciation provided
during the year

Transfer

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2020:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

166 |

0E3A31E

B019F 4710
iTE

FESE

R2019E3A318
NHEHTE
FvERBRS R
Z16508

R2019%4 A1 R (EE5)

T
ERAERE

i

EiBE

R00%3A318 -
ARZTE

R200EIA3E:
s
ZithE

FEFE

14. Y% - RERZH
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
fERERE HE4E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and other Motor  Construction
Land Buildings Sub-total Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Sub-total Total
fih - 2ER
1# £ gt g7 HELE AR bt ERIR it izt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TR TER TER TR TER TER TER
(note 15) (note 15)
(K15) (& 15)
- - - 251,112 85,743 47,844 667 86,672 472,038 472,038
- - - (58,142) (45,826) (36,462) (188) - (140,618) (140,618)
- - - 192,970 30917 11,382 419 86,672 331,420 331,420
- - - 192,970 39917 11,382 479 86,672 331,420 331,420
540,924 105,117 646,041 (164,177) - - - - (164,177) 481,864
540,924 105,117 646,041 28,793 39917 11,382 419 86,672 167,243 813,284
- 2,209 2,209 - 1,406 17 - 53,690 55,213 57,482
(18,644) (21,729) (40,373) (1,159 (5,298) (1,866) (133) - (8,449) (48,822)
- = - 119,957 - = - (119,97) - -
- (1,59 (1,592 - - - - (1,074) (1,074 (2,666)
522,280 84,005 606,285 147,508 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212,993 819,278
598,810 105,734 704,544 148,968 87,149 48,021 667 19,331 304,136 1,008,680
(76,530) (21,729) (98,259) (1,370) (51,124) (38,328) (321) - (91,143) (189,402)
522,280 84,005 606,285 147,508 36,025 9,693 346 19,331 212,993 819,278

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 55 4 i i (A

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. Y% - BERZ® @

Furniture,
Land fixtures
and Leasehold and other Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
Bl KER
THRET HEEE Hi R e TEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FEL THET T FET
31 March 2019 20194638 31AH
At 1 April 2018: R2018F4A18 ¢
Cost 3% 229,967 49,330 36,730 667 64,610 381,304
Accumulated depreciation e (52,669) (41,067) (34,863) (55) - (128,654)
Net carrying amount REFE 177,298 8,263 1,867 612 64,610 252,650
At 1 April 2018, net of R2018F4 418
accumulated depreciation R 2:HE 177,298 8,263 1,867 612 64,610 252,650
Additions NE 7,806 976 - - 69,161 77,943
Acquisition of subsidiaries YE—-HHE AR
(note 31) GEXID) 13,339 - 6 - - 13,345
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (5,473) (4,759 (1,599 (133) - (11,964)
Transfer B - 35,437 11,108 - (46,545) -
Exchange realignment IE R - - - - (554) (554)
At 31 March 2019, net of R2019F3A318 -
accumulated depreciation Mk ZAHiTE 192,970 39,917 11,382 479 86,672 331,420
At 31 March 2019: R2019F3 /318 :
Cost KA 251,112 85,743 47,844 667 86,672 472,038
Accumulated depreciation 2itinE (58,142) (45,826) (36,462) (188) - (140,618)
Net carrying amount FEFE 192,970 39,917 11,382 479 86,672 331,420
AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

14.

168 | PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
At 31 March 2020, the Group’s land and buildings with a total carrying
amount of HK$657,133,000 (2019: HK$179,748,000) was pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(b)).

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s construction in progress with a total
carrying amount of HK$28,595,000 was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(c)).

Included in the property, plant and equipment of the Group as at 31
March 2020 are certain right-of-use assets and owned assets with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$58,705,000 (2019: HK$41,891,000)
relating to an elderly home care service cash-generating unit which has
been operating at a loss. As there is an indication that these assets may
be impaired, management is required to perform an impairment
assessment on these assets by considering the recoverable amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit. The recoverable amount of the elderly
home care service cash-generating unit is determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections covering a period of the
remaining lease term approved by senior management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projection was 15.2% (2019:
16.7%). The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit estimated
from the cash flow forecast exceeded its carrying amount and no
impairment loss was recognised.

14. Y% - BMENKRE#)

M2020F3A3IA AEBEREAER
657,133,000 7L(20194F : 179,748,000 7T.)
2 REFE THEMR . AERR T ARER
—RRIRTTIEE (MHEE25(0)) ©

MR2019%F3A31H AEBREEEA
28,595,000 T2 FEE TR E T - &
R AREEN—RITEE (MiE250) -

AEBER2020F3A31HZWE  BEEK
HEEE TIREAEE 458,705,000 %7t (2019
F 41,891,000 ) NFABREAERBESR
E ZSEEAREREREACELSN
(BB EEEHE)BE BEREEETRZS
EERERE BEEASEEAYEECEL
Bzl eE  RxSEAE#RTRERT
e ZERSREESEESE M 2T KES
BHEBEANSREEEHEZNB THE
HRAeREBEANTENEREBENTEE
EeREMEBAEABAMIRERE15.2%
(20194 : 16.7%) - R @M B AL FHEY
BeELBEMNMAKESEBBERAE
B R ERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

15. LEASES 15. #HE
The Group as a lessee REBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings REBMEEBSEMBZZALIORETF
used in its operations. Leases of land and buildings generally have lease BEEREHREADN  tHREFHNHEEE—
terms between two and ten years, except for some have lease terms of MBNF—_Z+F HHEHA12@A AT
12 months or less and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the k/REBREAE2ETHERIN - —Ki
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets T AEBTARAAEEUIINATERZED
outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that include HEEEE BRERREILEEBEANA
extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which FHENZOE THEAYORITBHRERM T
are further discussed in note 2.3 to the financial statements. 2.3FEl
(@) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 April 2019) (@) FE{TLFAEAFR(HR2019F481851)
HK$’'000
FAT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 20184 4 A1 HMEREE 389,592
Recognised in profit or loss during the year FARRBEER (12,8495)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 72019 3 A 31 HMERMEE 376,747
At 31 March 2019, the Group’s prepaid land lease payments R2019FE3HA31H » &K £ B M 4 &
with a total carrying amount of HK$376,747,000 was pledged to 376,747,000 TTHITEN T AR ER B E
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note NESKETFTAEEN —KRBTEE(HFE
25(d)). 25(d)) °
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the REEBFRAREEENEMENRFEANE
movements during the year are disclosed in note 14 to the REIEIRRMIE 14 5258 -

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

15. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)

(@

— 170 |

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2019

New leases

Accretion of interest recognised during the year
Payments

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March 2020

Analysed into:
Current portion
Non-current portion

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 to

the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (d)

are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Less: Amount capitalised

Expense relating to short-term leases with remaining
lease terms ended on or before 31 March 2020

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

15. #HE»)
KREBIERAEBEA #)
© HEEE

R 201994 A1 BRERMEE

MRS

FFER RS
ES

[ 5

20204 3 A 31 HMEREE

DA
BIEAED 9
FERNEARE D

B9H#EE ©

HEBEFNE

EREEAENES L

B BERERRE

BT EEIMN 202043 A 31 Bk
ZRIE MO E S ERREM

RIBE AR R AR

HEAEMNERRERFAZSHNT

HK$°000
TET

110,312
2,209
2,650

(21,674)
(1,809)

91,694

20,877
70,817

THE B E0 28 D47 70 B 75 R P A

REZABIEEEENERANT ¢

2020
HK$’000
FTHET

2,650
40,373

(15,873)

241

27,391
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e 2P Wik (78)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2019, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2020, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2020:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

16. BREEE

2020 3H31H

201943 431 H & 201964 418 :
BN
REtHH
AREVFE

20199 4 A1 BHAKA « bk RrT# 85
FRE RS

720204 3 A 31 HAACA « Hkk Rt dH
M202043 4318 :

BRAR

Rt

AREDFE

| g L

A B2 )
2020 F #

Licences

5
HK$’000
TR

15,464
(6,186)

9,278

9,278
(3,093)

6,185
15,464
(9,279)

6,185
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (%8)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

31 March 2019

At 1 April 2018:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2018, net of accumulated amortisation
Amortisation provided during the year

Cost at 31 March 2019, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 March 2019:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

16. BEEE ®)

20193 A31H

MR2018F4 818 :
B AR
RETHEH
BR AT E

20184 4 A1 HMAKA « Mk RFT# 5
FRE R

20194 3 A 31 HMAA « Mk Rt s
MR2019E3 84318 :

BRAR

Rt

AREHE

Licences
TEER
HK$ 000
FHET

15,464
(3,093)

12,371

12,371
(3,093)

9,278

15,464
(6,186)

9,278
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

17.

18.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

DIEEEFR

Share of net assets

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

17.

R—BEEEERE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TAT
21,403 21,726

AEEE2REFBWT ¢

Particulars Place of Percentage of

of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Company name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
DNEEB BECRITRAOHE SMEeEnd HEERE REEEIL RN EEEHR
Patina Wellness Limited ~ HK$42,600,000 Hong Kong 51% 50% 51%  Investment holding
S EBRAR 42,600,000/ 7T 55 REZER
The above investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the iR —EAE N ERERARNFIEEES -
Company.
The amount due from a joint venture included in the Group’s current FAREERBEENER —BEEDER
assets is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The BHAEEEM . PENBARERKEERE HE
financial impact of expected credit losses on the amount due from a 2020 R 2019 3 A31 HILFE - IRIEFRS
joint venture under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31 BAFSREER|E QYR - R —RA& S AFRIE
March 2020 and 2019. WIRREEBENT BT ELTERK -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. ESEWRIE

Trade receivables B 5 WA

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing. They are stated net of provision.

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHERT TET
5,521 2,251

AEBEAERFPZESGRRETERCER I
MEP —RARENK - EEH KRB —E
A-BREPRAFEELR -AEEBHEK
Y IBl 7 R IR A S R AR B - A B
BREEE TSR - BN bl E R AREE
BZEBRESRAETRETF @ #EERE
BIAIFFEANES - BHRUGHAS BTFE
WHNER B E R IR -

l T B 2 AR AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (%8)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

Within one month —EAR

One to two months —ZWmEA

Two to three months MZE =& A

Over three months BB =1EA

The financial impact of expected credit losses on trade receivables
under HKFRS 9 is insignificant for the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19.
OTHER ASSETS
Prepayments TEfRIE
Deposits b
Other receivables E fth & W R IE
Current portion included in prepayments, BUERER S (FTAFER FUIE -

other receivables and other assets Efb W FIE R EMEE)
Non-current portion SERNHAEL 7>

The financial impact of expected credit losses on financial assets
included in the above balances is insignificant for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for
which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

174 | PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I

YA ECELE )
RIBEEF - B 5T R E = AR
B BRSO T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
2,792 1,325
2,337 888
290 35

102 3
5,521 2,251

B ZE 2020 20193 A31 HILFE - &%
M mEEFEOREE ZRUFIANTAL(E
EERNMBTELIEKX -

T S0E - E AR RURR E At
aE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
1,232 1,462
8,052 7,967
454 732
9,738 10,161
(2,930) (3,607)
6,808 6,554

HZE2020F K 2019F3 A31 HILFE » 5t A
PGS REENBHEEBENME
FELTEK -

ol SRR ET L B A B D 4 T HAE 490 6%
B FE W R IB MBI HA R IE A B8 o R 2020F K&
20196 3 A31 H ' BEBRBELTEAKRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 5 e 2P Wik (78)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

20. GOODWILL 0. &

HK$'000
FAT

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 #2018%F 4 A1 H 2019434318 »

and 31 March 2020: 20194 4 A1 H k2020638318 :
Cost AR 33,833
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount BREDFE 33,833

Impairment testing of goodwill R BRI

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
business combinations is allocated to the cash-generating unit of elderly
home care services operated by Gericare Centre and Ruby International
with a carrying amount of goodwill of HK$31,300,000 and to the cash-
generating unit of elderly home care services operated by Hinta
Enterprises with a carrying amount of goodwill of HK$2,533,000 as at
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

The recoverable amount of each of the elderly home care service cash-
generating units has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rates applied to
the cash flow projections of the two cash-generating units are 12.8%
(2019: 12.0%) and 12.6% (2019: 13.2%) for Gericare Centre and Ruby
International, and Hinta Enterprises, respectively.

The cash flows of the cash-generating units of Gericare Centre and
Ruby International, and Hinta Enterprises are projected using an annual
growth rate of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation of 9.0% (2019: 9.0%) and 3.0% (2019: 3.0%), respectively,
during the five-year period. The cash flows of the two cash-generating
units beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 1.8% (2019: 3.0%), which was below the long-term average growth
rate of the industry. The recoverable amount of each of the cash-
generating units estimated from the cash flow forecast exceeded their
respective carrying amounts.

BURERIS M S © K 202043 A 31 B %2019
F3A31B  BREBAHAESZAESD
EEREEEZPOLRABABIEMEERE
B & AR 75 75 2 Bk ™ {8 4 31,300,000 8 T A9 18
CEABMN  UERBAKPEMEERERS
BRAS P BRI E 5 2,533,000 8 THIR G E AL
B UEITRERNE, ©

ELERERBRESEEEMNA RO SE
DBERNEREE RASREEENMER
FHNRSTERATEET - REZLEFP
DRAERBEBEARBACERMEIRSELE
BALMIR &R 2 TERE AR T ATRE IR R 5 Bl
512.8% (20194F : 12.0%) K% 12.6% (2019
F:13.2%) °

REEERLRABEEBARBRDERN
ReELBURAFHAZRESRED BIE
MBRFE - BB TERBHEIREFER
#£9.0% (20194 : 9.0%) K& 3.0% (20194 :
3.0%)#EITIENR - AFHBOMERSELE
M E IR & 7 8 b 1.8% (2019 4F : 3.0%) Ky 1
REREE  BERTENRBTHERE - /A
ReRmBBAGT 2SR eEEEMATKE
CEBLSEEEmE -

2020 £ ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P i (480)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

20.

176 | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the cash-
generating units for 31 March 2020 and 2019. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the gross margin achieved
in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

If the annual growth rate of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation of the cash-generating unit of Gericare Centre and
Ruby International during the five-year period had decreased to 6.5%
(2019: 6.7%) with all other variables held constant, the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit would have been approximately
equal to the carrying amount. If the annual growth rate of earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation of the cash-
generating unit of Gericare Centre and Ruby International during the
five-year period had decreased to 6.0% (2019: 6.0%) with all other
variables held constant, the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
would have exceeded the recoverable amount by approximately
HK$2,255,000 (2019: HK$3,537,000).

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of the
cash-generating unit of Gericare Centre and Ruby International had
increased to 14.0% (2019: 12.9%), with all other variables held
constant, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit would
have been approximately equal to the carrying amount. If the pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of the cash-
generating unit of Gericare Centre and Ruby International had increased
to 15.0% (2019: 13.5%), with all other variables held constant, the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit would have exceeded the
recoverable amount by approximately HK$8,099,000 (2019:
HK$6,067,000).

20.

[EESIE D,

GESNERENENE))

T E2020F K2019F 3 A3 B IR & E AL
BREABEREABRE - UTATERER
BHES RERANEEETREIRNE
BEERR

BEEMX — ARNEEREENEREBENE
ERNERREFEN —FMERNENX -
EFEA R T R TR ISR B iR Tt

BERE — FIIRAMBRERTAIRERE - &
BT BB E R -

MR EEERLRABARRNIRSELE
R REFHAN NGRS  HIE - TERE
AT M 2 F I8 R X D £6.5% (20194 -
6.7%) MATEHMEBEZTE - AIRSE
HEBMMAIIRE SRS ORENREE - W
REEERLRABABRBEMINSELEN
REFHAZINGFE - BB - FTE REH
Al U &= F R KR 2 £6.0% (20194 ¢
6.0%) * MATAEHMEBEZTE - BIRSE
AENHNEAESEATKESELY
2,255,000 7T (2019 £ : 3,537,000/ L) °

MR EEERLRABARBRNRSELE
HREREERAMANRATRRXREINE
14.0% (20194F : 12.9%) * 1 Fr A5 H b &

WRTE ARSELSNNITRESER
HHEERIREE - MREEERLRALEA
BEENREeEAEMMRS RETEAMAN
oAl BE BROE 45 J0 F15.0% (20194 :
13.56%) ' MATA £t HEIFTE ARG
EXBMNMEDESBBTRESELY
8,099,000 7T (2019 4F : 6,067,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Insurance asset (note (a))

Notes:

(@) The Group entered into a life insurance policy with an insurance company
to insure an executive director. Under the policy, the Group is the
beneficiary and the policy holder. The above insurance asset was, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss. The fair value of the insurance asset is determined
based on the cash surrender value less the surrender charge at the end of

each reporting period.

(b) The Group’s financial asset at fair value through profit or loss with a
carrying amount of HK$3,143,000 (2019: HK$3,083,000) was pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2020, as further
detailed in note 25(e) to the financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

R EE (HFE ()

o RARTTAERR

21.

22.

BAREFAESNEREE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHET
3,143 3,083

Wi

@ AKEE-FRRBRABTISRARE MR
B—2RTEE - REZRE  ARERE
HARREFAA o LIRBREER T
RERAEEATERE AN B ABAND
MEE - RBREEZAABEDEZRSEHR
ROTMERERAEE

(b) 7 % [E Bk @ 1B A 3,143,000 7% 7T (20194 -
3,083,000/ L) 2 AR B ABEMNE R
BEDN2020F3 A31 BIEAAEERITE
HZER ELHBERRTHREMN T

25(g) °
RERBASEEY
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
27,767 50,879

BHRRTHER SRS B RITERAEMNT
BRI EHMAL - BIEBERREBRYT
BT ER R R AR AT -

| T B 2 AR AR A | 177
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

S 25 e o Wik (%8)

31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—fEAR

Within one month

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have
payment terms of 30 days.

23. E5EMNRIEA
RIREHR EHRNFARERAHAE
HBREC D ATEAT ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
2,029 1,992

B ENKBTTNE

BRFE—#&A30

=
24. HiENSRIERETER

31 March 1 April 31 March

2020 2020 2019

2020 F 2020 F 20194

3A31H 4818 3HA31H

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

8,329 5,045 10,240

10,011 8,711 8,711

637 - _

18,977 13,756 18,951

(18,977) (13,756) (13,892)

- - 5,059

H e R FE
=f@&A -

FHNFHR—E

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Other payables Hith B 5RIE
Accruals EEtEA
Contract liabilities GHBEE
Portion classified as current liabilities 98 &8 B EHI 2D
Non-current portion ERBEL S
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average payment
terms of one to three months.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

25. ;T BERITER

2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRFIE (%) E3) TEr  BBRAE%) Ealf| TR
Current E
Bank borrowings — secured  $17EH — AT On demand/
BER/
2.00-4.05 2020 408,574 2.13-3.66 2019 56,396
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings — secured $R{TfER — HIKHA 2.00-3.80 2021-2035 190,677 2.13-3.66 2020-2035 537,120

The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over certain of
the Group’s land and buildings, which had an aggregate carrying amount
as at 31 March 2020 of approximately HK$657,133,000 (2019:
HK$179,748,000) (note 14).

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over certain of
the Group’s construction in progress, which had an aggregate carrying
amount as at 31 March 2019 of approximately HK$28,595,000 (note 14).

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a mortgage over the
Group’s prepaid land lease payments, which had an aggregate carrying
amount as at 31 March 2019 of approximately HK$376,747,000 (note 15).

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by a pledge over the
Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with a carrying
amount as at 31 March 2020 of HK$3,143,000 (2019: HK$3,083,000)
(note 21).

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are jointly guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As detailed in note 2.1 to the financial statements, as at 31 March 2020,
the Group failed to comply with a covenant in respect of a term loan with a
carrying amount of HK$346,500,000, which has become repayable on
demand and has been classified as a current liability as at 31 March 2020.

599,251 593,616
GEE
@  AREEEBTEIAETEE -

(o)  AEERIRITERUAIRAAER 20204 3 A 31
H #)/657,133,0007%8 7T (2019 4F : 179,748,000
PEIT) 2 AN EE T Lt RAEF AR (KT 5
14) o

(© AEBARITERARAAER 20193 A
31 H#)428,595,0008 L2 AL EE TER
TREEM (MEE14) o

() 752 B WY SR 17 18 BOLABR E 42 B R 201946
3A31 B4 /A376,747,000/8 7T 2 A £ B T8
o LA E A SRR (H7E15) ©

(e) AEEME T IRITE R AREER2020F
3318 43,143,000/ 70 (20194 : 3,083,000
BL) 2 AEBIRARBEFABENEREE
VR (BiizE21) -

( REBMIE TRITERBARFNE THEB
RAEFKFEHER o

() a0 B 7 R R MY FE2.1 B EF - 720204 3
BB ASEEXREBETEHEEEAEAR
346,500,000/ ST K TE BIE R 25 - B
BHN 202063 A31 BEK AIEEK(EE
WESBEARBEE -

| R EEEEAE R AF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25.
(Continued)
Notes: (continued)
() The amounts payable of the bank borrowings are analysed as follows:
Bank borrowings: RITER
Within one year or on demand —FAFIRERER
In the second year F_F
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ERF(RIEEEMT)
Beyond five years HBBAF
26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 26.
The Group provides for future long service payments expected to be
made to employees under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
movements of provision for long service payments during the year are
as follows:
At beginning of year REF
Retirement benefit costs charged to REEHBR AR REFIK A
profit or loss (current service cost) (IEE%HEFEJZZK)

Retirement benefit costs (credited)/charged to
RIRREFIK A

other comprehensive income

— actuarial (gain)/loss — financial assumptions

— actuarial loss — demographic assumptions — fEEEE — AD4E
At end of year RER
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

BRI E
RIRF BN 2 TR ek

Discount rate

Expected rate of future salary increases

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

— BE ) BE - BBRR

R

%-I_/%\ ﬁﬂ ftt (ﬁﬁ)
s - (48)
(h) TEROERREBEBI AT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T
408,574 56,396
138,244 41,661
48,373 134,213
4,060 361,246
599,251 593,516
REIBR A R
REBRBEEEEFBEGIISBELHRZERE

BXNMEHRESELREE - FARMIR
BNFBEESHMT

REMEEBEA GEA), B

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHEIT

4,441 3,621

1,444 216

(1,386) 206

545 398

5,044 4,441
FAZEERERINAT :

2020 2019

% %

0.7 15

4.3 43
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

(Continued)

The sensitivity of the long service payments to changes in the weighted

principal assumptions is as follows:

26. REIPRFEFEEE @

RHRBNFRE T 2MRINEZSHOGEE

mF -

Effect on
Change to  defined benefit
Assumption adopted rate plan obligation
B HEBEBRE
BNt RE B AEZTE
2020 20204
Discount rate BhI8 &R +0.1% -1.5%
-0.1% +1.5%
Expected rate of future salary increases R E BN 2 FEHR IS R R +0.1% +0.5%
-0.1% -0.5%
2019 20194
Discount rate BhIR &R +0.1% -1.6%
-0.1% +1.6%
Expected rate of future salary increases RIARE BN 2 FEH I R R +0.1% +0.8%
-0.1% -0.8%
27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EHERE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE MR R R ERA
consolidated statement of financial position R IAE E 6,200 5,265

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the IR E B AR R R AR A
consolidated statement of financial position EERIBEE (14,211) (14,984)
(8,011) 9,719

| R EEEEAE R AF
! 2020 # 3k
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

as follows:

At 1 April 2018

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year

At 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019

Deferred tax credited to the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year

At 31 March 2020

27. IRIEFIE ()
WER - BEREEERABENEHNT -

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
Tax losses depreciation Total
BHEBTE
REEE HiTERAE Mat
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
n2018%F 4 A1H 376 (11,745) (11,369)
FRNEFEERE
A (05 B
IRIERTE 2,393 (743) 1,650
MK201943A31 B K
2019F 4 H1H 2,769 (12,488) 9,719)
FREHFEBERE
T ARPRIETIE
1,103 605 1,708
M 202043 A31H 3,872 (11,883) (8,011)

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED I
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

28.

20.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 A%

HK$0.01 each

BRITRERE
902,880,000 fix

Issued and fully paid:
902,880,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
current and prior years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of motivating eligible participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with such eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the directors, including independent non-executive directors, executives
or officers of the Group, full-time or part-time employees of the Group,
and advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such
other persons who, in the sole opinion of the directors, will contribute or
have contributed to the Group. The Scheme became effective on 23
January 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue of the Company immediately following
completion of the Company’s initial public offering, i.e. 86,400,000
shares. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

28.

FIREEO0.01E T E R

GREEO0.01 BT TRk

20.

R

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
50,000 50,000
9,029 9,029

AR RIRARRAE I BB T REH -

BRESE
ARBREERES(5HE])) 5@
BERZEERAEENERTEARER
BE - FEARSI RBERELSE A NEE
REBRFEHERNZEAERZEE LI
HAn )y B E RSB ETERIR - 518
MEERSHEERREZ (REBIYIFNTE
=) AEETBRABRSRBE  AEEE
BokBEENER BHRA HER X
FoHEhEREE2RRAALEHNEH AL
EELEMOEREMAL - FTE8B2017 4
1ABRBAEM  BRIERTTHEHET &
AIEE ARERARTEF -

R IR T 87T B 15 &0 B IR P08 IR B9 AR 1)
BERAXTBBAZBEARABERAAFAE
EXRENERRRDETRMBEA10% -
B186,400,000 f& I% 153 » BB 1T AR & 71 & % H
B RRATHE 2 BT AR 1T BB AR M AT A8 T 1A
BITHRNEE LR TEBBARARTEE
BT/ EI30% « WEM+=EAHA - R
BBl RBRIEN MM B8 mEHET
WRMHEE ERAERBEEE BARARBET
BRIDHI1% o TR 1t 1% ERR & RERRAE A
EHEE - BRRERSEREAE

l T B 2 AR AR A

2020 £ ]
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

29.

30.

184 | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance

in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors, but
must be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, no options
have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

RESERVES

(@ Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reorganisation of the Group in the prior years.

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[

29.

30.

BRETE @

MEF AAFATETBRABSTERES
AT AR R - B8 B I
BTEEHE - 1o BEAAAATEE
RSB I ITE B T (IR AR
HEERRAE - I+ =B A BABBEA T
T B BT 40.1% st & M8 8 (IR IE B
BARARGERSE) SREEEBT - A
PR AR 5 45 TR e o

RARAXNEHABTZREARER - &
HERENZOARARZE REF21AR
By REMBRETERRERET X
RETHEBHERE  BRENKLBRE
BEER T2 AER -

EENETERETEE HEETESERT
NEEmEONRNARRORIESERERS
BEX AT E - (VAR RO R EEIRZA
Bz AR AR 5 B 2B AT mE « i)
RABIRRG B EE -

PR B IR T A AW R S BOR
RE LIRRAEER -

MNZEMBIMEREM B H - BB RN
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

31.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 January 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Pine Active Care, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to acquire, and Pine Active Care agreed to dispose of the entire equity
interest of Giant Success, a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
which holds two properties situated in Tsz Wan Shan and Ngau Tau
Kok, respectively, in Hong Kong, for the purpose of being used as staff
dormitory of the Group. The purchase consideration of HK$13,305,000
for the acquisition was in the form of cash. The transaction was
completed on 9 January 2019. As at the date of completion of the
acquisition, the sole asset of Giant Success is its interest in the two
properties without any business operation and the acquisition was
therefore accounted for as an acquisition of assets. The majority of the
consideration was paid for the acquisition of the two properties.

The cost of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of

acquisition was as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Other payables

Total identifiable net assets

Satisfied by:

Cash Re

31.

W BE kA
H AR R

AESEE AR

ATHN T AT

iz B it /B =]

201941 A4 H » A"NEE EPine Active Care
RN —HERRE Bt AEERBEWRER
Pine Active Care AIEHERIE(—ERE BT
MR AR  HAEMEDIMREBEE
I RFEARNYE) 2HRE - HEASER
SIfE&E A - WK E13,305000% T 7Y
MR EAIEL - ZXZ HEMR2019F1 79
Bk - R KB RIEHNE—BE
REMBIWEEMRELEENDENER
EitZz BB IERKEBEEAR - KBHNRE
FARA 215 R IE P 25 B B o

P BRI A B E R B ERAIT

HK$°000
TR

13,345
(40)

13,305

13,305

2020 £ ]
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-

use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,209,000 and

HK$2,209,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

(a

(b)

(©)

—1 186 |

land and buildings (2019: Nil).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 1 April 2018

Changes from financing cash flows

Final dividend
Interim dividend

At 31 March 2019

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

At 1 April 2019 (restated)

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Interest expense
Exchange realignment
Final dividend

Interim dividend

At 31 March 2020

Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[
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32.

mERERERMET
(@ FEHRERH

FR - AEEFR T REFHOEELH
ZEREEENEEAGENIFERSIEN
% Bl /2,209,0007% 7T K& 2,209,000 7

JL(20194F : &)

(b) METBHELEREE
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable
HEEE RITHER EBERE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHIT FHET
H2018%F 418 - 531,604 -
FRERSRES - 61,912 (15,168)
REAR B - - 7,584
FRERRR B - - 7,584
R20194 3 A31H - 593,516 -
IR RN BB 55 2R
£ 1655 110,312 - -
R2019F 4 A 18 (K&E5) 110,312 593,516 -
REBLhER (21,674) 5,735 (14,084)
WA 2,209 - -
FEFAZ 2,650 - -
i H AR (1,8083) - -
REARR B - - 7,042
AR HEARR S - - 7,042
7202043 A31H 91,694 599,251 -
(c) HERESRLEEE
AARESRERANEERS RLAE
NN
2020
HK$’000
THET
RIEETEHA 241
REt & /EE)A 21,674
21,915
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end of the

34.

35.

reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s interest-bearing

bank borrowings are included in notes 14, 15, 21 and 25 to the financial

statements.
COMMITMENTS 35.
(@ The Group had the following capital and other
commitments as at the end of the reporting
period:
Contracted, but not provided for: EEEEIOE S
Investment in a joint venture R—EEEERE
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 March

2019

The Group leased certain of its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these land and
buildings were negotiated for terms ranging from two to ten
years. At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years hFE

33.

34.

F_ERF(BREREMT)

HAREE
AEBREE AR L MEARARM -

BEKH

B AR AL BN BIRITER A%
BEEEMNGBHRRMERRME14 15 21
$ 25 °

I
@ RMEHKR  AEEHEETS
BEARH A
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
- 4,590

(b) H2019F3 AT HHPKEHE
HAE
AEBBRELHEERHEEEETF L
HRIET o ZE i RIEFORE
FEFBHNF_E+F - R2019F3 A
318 AEEBE R BNCLHE
A T FIEAR BIHA > K R A R B kR
wEmT

2019
HK$°000
TET

20,408
66,031
3,459

89,898

| R EEEEAE R AF
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

(b)

(c)

— | 188 |

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 !

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
with related parties:

Rental expenses paid to a company A B2 i B 58 iz &l 2 A 7

controlled by former controlling YftzBeRX
shareholders

Rental income from a company R B AR RR AR SR Az
controlled by former controlling WANCIWA i k3 N
shareholders

Visiting medical service fees paidto £ FAARE FH B AT

36. BBEARS

(@

Notes

B aE

a director of certain subsidiaries of ~ —RZEEV F|P RERGE

the Company
Purchases of medicines from a WRTIERRAR SR ATIE S 2 A A
company controlled by former i B 42y

controlling shareholders

Notes:

(i) The rentals were determined at rates mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.

(ii) The service fees were determined at rates in accordance with the
terms and conditions set out in the contracts entered into between
the relevant parties.

(iii) The purchases were conducted at prices mutually agreed between
the relevant parties.

Other transaction with a related party

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group acquired the
entire interests in Giant Success from Pine Care Active for a
consideration of HK$13,305,000. Further details of this
acquisition are included in note 31 to the financial statements.

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group
for the year represented the directors’ emoluments as disclosed
in note 9 to the financial statements.

(i)

(i

(b)

(c)

BB TSR BB D PARF L R S5 -
AREE R EITATRS

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

- 252

324 320

- 441

= 120

0 SRR AR ERLL REE -

(i MRS IR RIBARB T RISL 2 B KA
R B M P RTBR 2 L R E o

(iii BB B AERE 5 B AR BV EARELT ©

BHEBLTNEMRS
HE2019F3A31HILFE  AEH
1A Pine Care Active I B8 7= 18 1) & 2 1
%= RIE/A13,305,000/8 7T © A B ILIE
W iE B I 2 — R IH R B S AR R BT
FE31 e

REE T 2EIRASNF AR50
BHREMTIOMBRECEFME -
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31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. BoRETHNERMITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RIERR SR TESENEREQDT -

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2020 20203 H31H
Financial assets EMEE
Financial asset at Financial
fair value through assets at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BAREFA RBHERATE
BRNeREE HEMEE Hst
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER FTER TExT
Trade receivables B 5 EURIE - 5,521 5,521
Financial asset at fair value BARBERABZRR
through profit or loss CHEE 3,143 = 3,143
Financial assets included in other T AR AU R IE
receivables and other assets REMEENSREE - 8,506 8,506
Due from a joint venture el —FEAEBERE - 8,921 8,921
Cash and cash equivalents BELREELEEY - 27,767 27,767
3,143 50,715 53,858
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHRATHE
Hemas
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables B S RIE 2,029
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals T AEfBERFRIE R EERN SR AE 18,340
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R BRITIER 599,251
619,620

| R EEEEAE R AF
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
31 March 2019
Financial assets

Trade receivables

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets included in other
receivables and other assets

Due from a joint venture

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED |
—1 190 | !
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FEAE A RUAFIR

37. BABITWERMIT AW

2019 3A31H

FEMEENTSREE

A —FEAE XA

BehBeHEY

cRERE
Financial asset at Financial
fair value through assets at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BARERFA FREHA R
BRfeREE AENEREE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
- 2,251 2,251
3,083 - 3,083
- 8,699 8,699
- 103 103
- 50,879 50,879
3,083 61,932 65,015
A=
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

REER AR 2

NeRBE

HK$'000

FETT

B S ENFIE 1,992
FFAEMEMNFEREFEANSRAE 18,951
FHERITER 593,516
614,459




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 5 e e P ik (480)

31 March 2020 2020%3/31H

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments, other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are reasonably
approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in other
receivables and other assets, an amount due from a joint venture,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and the
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. The finance department
analyses the measurements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation, which is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as
a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were assessed to be
insignificant. The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximated to their carrying amounts as at
31 March 2020 and 2019.

The fair value of the insurance asset measured at fair value through
profit or loss is based on the cash surrender value less the surrender
charge calculated and provided by the insurance company at the end
of each reporting period. The Group paid an upfront premium for the
policy and may surrender the policy at any time by making a request in
written form to the insurance company and receive cash based on the
then surrender value less the surrender charge of the policy. In the
opinion of the Directors, the surrender value less the surrender charge
of the policy provided by the insurance company is the best
approximation of the fair value, which is categorised as level 3.

38.

TRTENDIABBRDA
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31 March 2020 202043/ 31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. TRMIANAABERAAREER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRIRAKEESH TEN AR BN EER
the Group’s financial instruments:
Asset measured at fair value: BARETENEE -
As at 31 March 2020: 7202038318 :
Fair value measurement using
ARAREBEFEZSH
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXRAEHE EBERFTAHEER
TERTISRE BWAE BWABE
(B—#%) (=% (B=#/) st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET TET FHET
Financial asset at fair value BARER ABR
through profit or loss TREE - - 3,143 3,143
As at 31 March 2019: R201943A31A :
Fair value measurement using
BRAREFEZ2H
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BRABE BEATAHE
BT ISRE BAZE BAHE
(B—4) (B=#) (B=8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Financial asset at fair value AR EFAEED
through profit or loss SREE - - 3,083 3,083
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair values R2020F K 20194F 3 A31 H » REBEWET
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. MRAREFEZSRAR -
During the year, there was no transfer of fair value measurements RAFEER MEemBEEAEREBEMmS
between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer into or out of level 3 for both F—MEFE _HM7AABEAENEEE - JF
financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil). REEAF=LHBF=HEL o (20194 -
) .
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade and other
receivables and other assets, cash and bank balances, an amount due
from a joint venture, trade and other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations.

Management meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks, including principally
credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group has no
significant exposure to foreign currency risk. Generally, the Group
employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 March.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiKEMREEBZENREE®)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued) =E R 2)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEEMEFAEAMKER (&)
As at 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 7
FEBE 2HAHEERS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RN B2k EIRR Bt 5% st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TR FTiER THER TERT
Trade receivables g SENGRIAR - - - 5,521 5,521
Financial assets included in other &t AELfi U FRIE 2
receivables and other assets HEENEHEE 8,506 - - - 8,506
Due from a joint venture FEl—M& % ARIIE 8,921 - - - 8,921
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 27,767 - - - 27,767
45,194 = - 5,521 50,715
As at 31 March 2019 MR201953A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A8 E
=EEE ZEEEEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1BER F2MEER FE 3R b 77 0% mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FET FTAT FET FAT
Trade receivables B SRR - - - 2,251 2,251
Financial assets included in other & A E fth & U 7078 I
receivables and other assets HEtWEENEREE 8,699 - - - 8,699
Due from a joint venture B —MAEARIFIAE 103 - - - 103
Cash and cash equivalents B RBEEEY 50,879 - - - 50,879
59,681 - - 2,251 61,932
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiIEREEEEREE®
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk F = @ s

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk principally relates to the
Group’s bank loans which are based on the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate or the best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk by
monitoring closely the movements in interest rates and reviewing its
banking facilities regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate
swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

AEBEAEZNERERTRZELAEEZE
BIRITEEF B A FEERFI R B ORT

ERAM - AEEBEBEMRTBEIINERN
HPHLEHNERITHRERERR - NREEL
AL PR R R g B A S A R El e

As at 31 March 2020, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 25 FR2020%F 3 A318 - i 1ﬁ§kﬂfiﬁ I8 [E R
basis points higher/lower, which was considered reasonably possible )E'_:,Tﬁgé.\@i‘ m/m o5 EER - mprE H
by management, with all other variables held constant, the profit after i B M A EUJ%Z;:;EZ HIEFERBIE

tax for the year then ended would have been decreased/increased by
approximately HK$528,000 (2019: HK$508,000) as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of lease liabilities and bank loans.
In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

stk ) R 8R 17 18 ZR) BB 4 hn ek A T R
A /18 h1 49528,00078 7T (2019 4 : 508,000
BIT) °

REBEERER

AEENERABRERREARRRITH
HAEE ST E N R EE 2 RS T -
1o FEME E1TIRITRVE A2 2 A -
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39.

— 196 |

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

was as follows:

As at 31 March 2020:

Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other payables
and accruals
Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

As at 31 March 2019:

Trade payables
Other payables
and accruals
Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

BHENTR
HEAE
Hfo R FIER
fEst &M
FHRRITRER

B RMNHEA
HioEIFEK
fEEt &M

BRI

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

REBESRER @)
RI|EEF - AEERBTHRERARW
SREENBAMENT

7202053 A31H :

39. R ERE B ZERBE @)

On demand or In the 3to Over
within 1 year second year 5 years 5 years Total
REREE
H—FR g3 =ZRE BBRF st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FTET TERT TET TET
2,029 - - - 2,029
23,238 24,014 36,779 14,674 98,705
18,340 - - - 18,340
416,947 141,060 53,682 5,621 617,310
460,554 165,074 90,461 20,295 736,384
M201963 8318 :
On demand or In the 3to Over
within 1 year second year 5 years 5 years Total
REREE
F—FRN B —ERF BBRF fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET TR FHET
1,992 - - - 1,992
13,892 435 1,330 3,294 18,951
71,880 195,144 84,034 340,904 691,962
87,764 195,579 85,364 344,198 712,905
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

39. BRI EE B ERBR @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group mainly relies on bank borrowings for financing its operations. The
Group manages a gearing ratio being the total amount of interest-
bearing bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by
total assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

FHRIRITRER (M FE25)
o RERREEEBY

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 25)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt FaE
Total assets BERTE
Gearing ratio BAEBELE

BREE
FEBAREROEERBARBAEER
BIEEOENREFREDERLE  AX
BEEGRBBRARRMEE -

AEBEARCESAZEDERLAELER
BE-BTHEFAHBEALERE  A5EHT
SRR PRS- MEREREEANL
BOTHR - AREEERBRITERREE
BrEs AKENEEAGRLEUGER
TEFRRE RS EEYRIAEEERET
HeoRBEMRNEEAB/LENT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
599,251 593,516
(27,767) (50,879)
571,484 542,637
943,378 844,746
60.6% 64.2%
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Due from a subsidiary

Total current assets

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

— 198 |

Less than HK$1,000

PINE CARE GROUP LIMITED
[
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FRBEE
R B RRN®RE

FERBDEELE

RBEE
RekReEEY
FEW —FRIFT 88 R B 3RIA

MBEERR

BEFE

R

EEITRA
e (M)

40. R AEHEAMRT

ARERHRERROPBEARRREHDOT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHET
- _*
12 15
164,903 157,784
164,915 157,799
164,915 157,799
9,029 9,029
155,886 148,770
164,915 157,799
A 1,000 7T
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

41.

40. ZRQRIB AR IR (@)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: fisT -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATMREREOT ¢
Share
premium Retained
account profits Total
RBRER REBEF et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHET
At 1 April 2018 ®20184F 4 A1 H 148,770 - 148,770
Profit and total comprehensive income &% F| & 2 E A LB 58
for the year - 15,168 15,168
Interim dividend hERRR S - (7,584) (7,584)
Final dividend REARZ S - (7,584) (7,584)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 M2019F 3 A31 B K&
20194 A1H 148,770 - 148,770
Profit and total comprehensive income [ H | & 2 E KA L5
for the year - 21,200 21,200
Interim dividend  HARS B - (7,042) (7,042)
Final dividend REARR & - (7,042) (7,042)
At 31 March 2020 M20203 A 31 H 148,770 7,116 155,886

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 26 June 2020.

41. BEBPEIRK
R FEHERN2020F6 A6 HEEEE WA

KRR TIE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 5 R 22

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEEE

BZ3A3MBALEE
Year ended 31 March

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T FHET T FHET
Revenue &= 217,363 186,782 170,688 177,286 172,749
Profit before tax from REAFELEEBD
continuing operations B F5 B E A 17,122 15,150 18,915 17,387 31,105
Income tax expense RSBl (3,546) (1,690) (2,509) (4,956) (5,285)
Profit for the year from REFFELE R
continuing operations FE a7 13,576 13,460 16,406 12,431 25,820
Profit for the year FEER 13,576 18,460 16,406 12,409 27,255
Attributable to: FE(E :
Equity holders of the Company Z<2 F##HEH A 13,584 13,435 16,418 12,409 27,255
Non-controlling interests IR R ) 25 (12) - -
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION R IR
M3AS31H
As at 31 March
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T FHT T FHEIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 896,850 787,906 697,554 240,988 237,715
Current assets TENEE 46,528 56,840 82,241 184,308 76,412
Current liabilities mBAaE 455,978 76,061 38,011 52,128 71,789
Total assets less HWEERABAS
current liabilities 487,400 768,685 741,784 373,168 242,338
Non-current liabilities FErEaE 280,749 561,604 533,665 164,959 178,419
Equity attributable to equity RARE=RFEEA
holders of the Company FE{EREZS 200,253 200,208 203,231 208,209 63,919
Non-controlling interests FEPERR i 6,398 6,873 4,888 - -
Total equity R 206,651 207,081 208,119 208,209 63,919
Net debt FET 571,484 542,637 459,826 2,585 181,328
Gearing ratio EEAMBHER 61% 64% 59% 1% 58%

i AR R R ER Grit B RTERIR RS
RRSEEN BIAGAE R DAERIFRDE
E)itE

Note: Gearing ratio is measured by the net debt (representing interest-bearing bank
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) over total assets (representing
current assets and non-current assets).
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